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Series: NORTHERN IRELAND
.ile Title: SITUATION
Part: 6

Date From Subject Class

07/09/2001 Teleg'rfam'/INW s ~ [Telno 261 Holy Cross Primary School: Irish Reaction R
07/09/2001 |[NIO ‘ |Telephone conversation with Martin McGinness 7/9

07/09/2001 |Telegram/IN
10092001 [NO  [NIO  [Conversation with David McNarry
10/09/2001 PM |From David Trimble - Concerns over Aspects of Policing
11/09/2001 |NIO Ireland/HMA [The Mood in Dublin

11/09/2001 NIO NIO iConversation with Tim Dalton

12/09/2001 [NIO NIO |Timing of UUP Officers' Meeting

12/09/2001 [NIO NIO [Meeting with John Hume and Seamus Mallon, 11 September
12/09/2001 |FA/APS NIO Northern Ireland: Prime Minister's Phone Conversation with the Taoi
13/09/2001 [NIO NIO |Meeting with Richard Haass - 12 September

13/09/2001 [NIO FA/APS |Policing - Short Term Attainables
13/09/2001 |FA/APS NIO Meeting with David Trimble
13/09/2001 Ch.Staff ‘Northern Ireland Issues in the Lords
14/09/2001 |Ch.Staff |PM |Northern Ireland

15/09/2001 |NIO  [ChStaff  / |Conversation with Tim Dalton
15/09/2001  |NIO INIO EMeeting with david Trimble and Rev lan Paisley, 14 September
17/09/2001" |Ireland/HME |Ch.Staff |Lunch with Adrian O'Neill, 17 September

17/09/2001 |NIO [FA/APS John Hume ‘
17/09/2001 |PM | fletter to John Hume MP: thank you for a generation of political leader|
18/09/2001 |Ch.Staff |PM fNorthern Ireland ‘
18/09/2001 [NIO INIO Meeting with Gerry Adams

18/09/2001 |NIO |Ch.Staff Northern Ireland: Meeting with Irish Officials

18/09/2001 |[NIO [NIO Meeting with Tom Constantine, 18 September
19/09/2001 |NIO : iNIO Conversation with Gerry Adams

19/09/2001 |FA/APS [NIO (M) Meeting with UUP

19/09/2001 |[FA/APS fNIO (M) Working Breafast with the Taoiseach: 19 September
19/09/2001 'Repdblican' r'\lié\;v?éﬂpress release %
19/09/2001 |NIO ENIO conversation with tim dalton
19/09/2001 |NIO ?NIO The next few days

20/09/2001 5 email: Haass and other state dept remarks on Northern Ireland |IC
20/09/2001 5

fDuinn 261: Holy Cross Primary School: Irish Reaction
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| Transcript of the Taoiseach speaking on RTE radio 1 thurs 20 Sept 2|C
20/09/2001 ENIO Tonights meeting with Trimble and Paisley U
20/09/2001 [NIO |Conversation with David Campbell IC
20/09/2001 INIO |Call from General de Chaistelain U

|C

|

20/09/2001 [NIO |Sinn Fein and the Policing Board
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Series :

’ile Title : SITUATION

Date
[ 05/08/2001

Part: 6

From

Chsff,  ~ %

NORTHERN IRELAND

Subject

Call with Gerry Adams - Possible announcement of decommissionin |

Class Secret

06/08/2001

NIO

Report of the Independent International Commission on Decommissi |

06/08/2001
| 06/08/2001

FA/APS
NIO

Northern Ireland
Telephone Conversation with John Hume, 6 August

06/08/2001

PM

Press Statement - Important Step forward to resolve the arms issue

06/08/2001

Bertie Ahern, Taoiseach Sky News Interview, 6 August 2001

07/08/2001

NIO

The Secretary of State's Telephone Conversation with Richard Haas

07/08/2001

SINN FEIN

Response to British and Irish Govt proposals of 1/8/01

07/08/2001

FA/APS

Phonecall with David Trimble

09/08/2001

A Statement on Arms

09/08/2001

NIO

[Meeting with Sinn Fein this afternoon

09/08/2001

FA/APS

i(T) - Taoiseach

10/08/2001

NIO

|SS/NIO statement on suspension of assembly

10/08/2001

NIO

Phone call with the Prime Minister, 10 August

10/08/2001
10/08/2001

NIO

Phone call with David Trimble
Draft Statement

11/08/2001

NIO

Phone Call with Brian Coven, 10 August

C
C
Cc
C
C
Cc

13/08/2001

From David Burnside MP: Concerns over Policing Changes in Northe|

U
U

14/08/2001

NIO

Response to IRA Statement

14/08/2001

FA/APS

Northern Ireland: Policing

14/08/2001

'From Media Monitoring Unit-Dr John Reid, Press Conference at Hills |

14/08/2001

PA News Statement - IRA Statement in Full

14/08/2001

|

From DFA/Dublin - Statement by Mr Brian Cowen TD;Foreign Affairs

14/08/2001

SS/NIO

PM

Conversation with the Taoiseach

15/08/2001

NIO

NIO

SS/NIO's Phone Call with the Prime Minister, 15 August

15/08/2001

Ch.Staff

PM

Message on current IRA position

15/08/2001

17/08/2001

FA/APS
H/APPTS

NIO
FA/APS

(T) Northern Ireland: PM's Phonecall with the Taoiseach
\Northern Ireland Fiscal Incentives

21/08/2001

FA/APS

PM

iNorthern Ireland - Policing

21/08/2001

PM

NIO

|To Seamus Mallon-SDLP Announcement on Policing

21/08/2001

PM

NIO

|To John Hume-SDLP Decision on Policing

21/08/2001

NIO

NIO

UUP and Policing

22/08/2001

NIO

\FA/APS

Bloody Sunday Inquiry Tribunal Membership

23/08/2001

Ireland/HME

INIO

US embassy meeting with Sinn Fein

23/08/2001

Daily Telegraph article by Kate Hoey - "To keep his pledge, Tony Bla

24/08/2001

NIO

INIO

Possible meeting with David Trimble

24/08/2001

NIO

[NIO

What were Sinn Fein about

28/08/2001

NIO

INIO

|Conversation with Andy Sens, Decommissioning Commission

- 28/08/2001

SS/NIO

EPM

INorthern Ireland: The next stage and beyond

29/08/2001

FA/APS

INIO

Meeting with UUP

29/08/2001

Ch.Staff

PM

Northern Ireland - the way ahead by SS/NIO

29/08/2001

FA/APS

Email on FF & SF gossip

03/09/2001

FA/APS

|Ch.Staff
INIO

03/09/2001

NIO

FA/APS

(T) - PM's Telephone conversation with the Taoiseach

Bill of Rights for Northern Ireland

03/09/2001

DG/SS

INIO

Northern Ireland:Devolution of Law and Order Functions

04/09/2001

|ch.staff

[PM

i

Northern Ireland - Fdrthcoming Meeting with David Trimble !

04/09/2001

NIO

NIO

Af’hone Call with Jonaﬁ;én Powell

04/09/2001

NIO

|Ch.Staff

PM's meeting with David Trimble: Hole Cross School

05/09/2001

NIO

[NIO

Trimble meeting

06/09/2001

[NIO

06/09/2001

INIO

Sylvia Hermon on david Trimble

Martin Mansergh: 6 September
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Sen® Thursday, September 20, 2001 1:59 PM Ai
To: 'Jackie Sear' g
Cc: John Casson; Jim King; Tony Brenton; Paul Johnston (NY); Peter Reid; Karen Pierce

Subject: Haass and other State Dept Remarks on Northern Ireland

Tony Brenton

We have learned that Richard Haass made some tough remarks in a meeting with members of the Irish American
community today about the need for SF/IRA to clean up its act. He referred to the Turkish connexion, about which |
had previously spoken to him to confirm that Maskey had seen the DHKP last week. Many thanks to Jim King for
getting me this info so quickly. A good result.

Haass noted the IRA statement of yesterday but said there was now a need for actual decommissioning. No other act
would do more to help the peace process out of its present crisis. On Colombia, he said the US were still trying to
discover what happened. If the IRA had been doing business with the FARC it should never happen again. Evidence of
cooperation would have serious consequences. US intolerance of terrorism had just increased enormously. Sept 11th
had been a transforming event.

One person present at the Haass meeting has told us that there was real anger in Haass's voice as he said this.

The State Dept spokesman, Boucher, also told the press today in plain terms that the US now wanted the IRA to take
action on decommissioning and not just to talk about it.

Bob Peirce
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Transcript of the Taoiseach speaking on RTE Radio 1
Thursday 20 September 2001
Re: IRA Statement

Taoiseach: I welcome the statement, I think it is an indication of
movement and of some progress. While I welcome it, it is not enough in
terms of bringing us back to where we were on August Monday, And of
course August Monday was the first part of a two pronged process.
Firstly, to get the scheme, the modalities agreed with John de Chastelain,
the Decommissioning body and secondly for it to actually commence. So
while last nights statement is, I think, progress and a step in the right
direction, it is a step and we will just have to keep going. It would not
give us what want and it would not give a full response to the Weston
Park proposals and neither would it get over the difficulties that we have
in making sure that the institutions go forward,

Donal Kelly: To that extent, given all the pressure that there has been on
the IRA to, in the wake of the American atrocities, is it not a huge

disappointment that they haven’t managed to go back to where they were
with their last offer?

Taoiseach: I think the reality is of all this is that I would like not alone
back at the first part of it but to see the second part done. But it is clear in
the discussions that we have been having this week, with all of the
parties, that progress is going to take us some time, hopefully not too
long, and whether that is disappointing or not is the reality of it. What I
think Tony Blair and I are anxious to do and our officials who are still in
touch today with the parties, to gauge a reaction, is to make the necessary
progress that we need to make, And that progress, to be clear, is to have
them engage with General John de Chastelain and the International
Independent Commission on Decommissioning. They have now said
they will do that, they have said they will intensify it. I hope that means
that we will get to the stage of the modalities being back on the table, that
is the second part and the third thing which is really the part we need to

get back to, the Weston Park proposals, is that decommissioning actually
happens.

Donal Kelly: But none of this is enough to stave off another suspension
of the institutions this weekend.

Taoiseach: Well I don’t rule that out but it is very difficult, because it is
a limited time. We will have to make a call. Secretary of State John Reid
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will be in touch with Minister Cowen, during the course of today or
officials will be talking to the parties presently, We will have to make
that call in the next 24 hours. It would seem that that is the case, that it is
just too tight. And then how we deal with that position will have to be

agreed today or tomorrow, And I will be talking to PM Blair tomorrow
evening.

Donal Kelly: So it would be a suspension for, say, six weeks or
whatever, rather than elections?

Taoiseach: I think that is more likely. And I think to make it clear in our
view, if it is a period as long as six weeks that does not mean and cannot
mean that we can just leave this all drift for another six weeks. I think that
would be just a disaster and it is not something we would contemplate.

Donal Kelly: This would be the last chance saloon, really wouldn’t it?

Taoiseach: I think you have to be optimistic, but we can’t continue on
finding ways to just move it forward. It is a long time ago since Weston
Park, we have put our proposals. Ihave said this to all of the parties and I
have made the point clear to Sinn Fein, really we have spent two years on
these four questions. We have spent this entire year, the discussions
started on January 11%, it is now late September and really the agenda
hasn’t changed. And if we are to get on with the full implementation of
the Agreement which is what we have to do, I understand everybody
wants to do it, then that means that we get progress on the four
outstanding issues. And as well can I just repeat, that that also means
getting a response to everybody from the policing proposals, because that
1s something that is still in abeyance and I think we want to see progress
on all the issues,

ENDS

P. 8




"ONFIDENTIAL

BILL JEFFREY
Political Director

20 September 2001
BJ/MR/57

MR WATKINS PS/Secretary of State(L&B)
PS/Ms Kennedy(L&B)
PS/Mr Browne(L&B)
Sir Joseph Pilling
Mr Alston
Mr Fittall
Mr Maccabe
Ms O'Mara
Mr Stephens
Ms Bharucha
Mr Masefield

Mr Tatham No.10 %JVO

SINN FEIN AND THE POLICING BOARD TL

In the course of a conversation with Gerry Adams yesterday afterncon
bout other things, he said that he had received the Secretary of State’s
invitation to nominate members of the Policing Board. He was likely to
reply to the effect that Sinn Féin would not be nominzating “at this time”.
He did not want me to read anything into the question, but wondered
what the position would be if, at a future stage, Sinn Féin changed their

minds and decided to nominate.

s said that after tonight's deadline the Board would be formed from
the nominees of the parties willing to nominate, and independent
members. If Sinn Féin did not nominaie, the effect would be that the
UUP and the DUP would get one more seat each. The legal position was
that, unless suspension intervened, the Board would remain as composed
now until the Assembly elections due in May 2003. With a new
Assembly, d'Hondt would be run again, and Sinn Féin would have another
chance to nominate. If they decided to do so between now and then,
Ministers might well want to consider the situation which that would

9
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create, but it would require a change in the law for Sinn Féin to join the

Board ahead of an election.

Adams noted all this without comment.

[Dictated by Mr Jeffrey and signed in his absence: Marie Rebello]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank & 6447

9]

CONFIDENTIAL




FROM: BILL JEFFREY
Political Director
20 September 2001
BJ/MR/S8

PS/SECRETARY OF STATE(L& R} cc  PS/Ms Kennedy(L&B)
Sir Joseph Pilling
Mr Watkins
Mr Alston
Mr Fittall
Mr Hannigan
Ms O’Mara
Mr Stephens
Mrs Madden
Mr Tatham No.10

CALL FROM GENERAL de CHASTELAIN

General de Chastelain told me this morning that he had heard yesterday evening from

one of the people with whom he had previously met O'Neill”. This person had

alerted him to yesterday evening’s IRA statement, and said that it meant they would

want a meeting. De Chastelain had said “any time”. No time had yet been arranged,

but de Chastelain expected it to be quite soon, since the IRA knew he was planning to

travel next Tuesday.

[Dictated by Mr Jeffrey and sigied in his absence: Marie Rebello]

BILL JEFFREY
1| Millbank B 6447
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FROM: Bl JEFFREY
Political Director
20 September 2001
BJ/MR/59

PS/SECRETARY OF STATE(L&B! Sir Joseph Pilling
Mr Watkins
Mr Alston
Mr Fittall
Mr Stephens
Mr Hannigan

Mr Tatham N0.1O/66?a

4

CONVERSATION WITH DAVID CAMPBELL

David Campbell has given me a read-out of David Trimble’s meeting with
Gerry Adams this morning. | had previously warned him that Adams
night get cold feet about the risk of publicity and be less forthcoming
with Trimble than the Prime Minister had suggested.
y Campbell said that | had been right to be concerned. The meeting
had been pleasant enough, but Adams had said very little about
ecommissioning. He did not know if anything would happen. On
balance he felt something might, but he was beset by difficulties. Trimble
had said that there was a real problem over the IRA’s credibility. That in
rn gave him a difficulty over a one-day suspension. He would welcome
part of the IRA’s statement, but warned Adams that he would refute the

criticism of his own reaction to the earlier de Chastelain Report.

3. Campbell warned me that the position within the UUP was even
worse than before. There was detinitely a requisition prepared for a
Council meeting to require the withdrawal of Unionist Ministers. Trimble
did not think he could win such a vote. When he met the Secretary of

State this evening, he was likely to press for a longer suspension. The

1
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alternative would be for Trimble himself to issue some kind of ultimatum,
to the effect that if there was no decommissioning within two or three

weeks, he would withdraw his Ministers. We agreed that it would be

sensible for Trimble to have a separate discussion with the Secretary of

State about all this after the meeting with Paisley this evening.

[Dictated by Mr Jeffrey from RAF Northolt and signed in
his absence: Marie Rebello]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank & 6447

-2
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WILLIAM FITTALL
Associate Political Director {(1.)
20 September 2001

Jf (&)
e dm ()
MT

AC ()

FONIGHT’S MEETING WITH TRIMBLE AND PAISLEY 'T')L

PS/Secretary of State (L&B) See Copy Distribution Below

Robin Masefield’s submission of yesterday sct out the candidates for independent membership of

3oard. By around 6.00pm today the Sceretary of State will get a further submission from
David Watkins reporting the conclusions of the interviewing panel (which is sitting until 4.30pm).
We shall then need a substantial discussion with the Secretary of State in preparation for the 7.15pm
meeting

2

7 This note simply focuses on the interaction between policing issues and the big politics. For
Trimble and for us how best to handle tonight will be heavily influenced by whether we still seem 0
be heading towards a 24 hour suspension {(and if so whether we suspena before midnight tonight or
tomorrow) or whether Trimble threatens to trigger an indefinite suspension by pulling his Ministers

out (currently unlikely but his discussion with Adams at lunch time today could change things).

Some points to bear in mind are that:

according to today’s Newsletter a UUC meeting will be requisitioned, possibly as early as

Jorrow. if Trimble takes it upon himself tonight to nominate to the Board. The Council
xould then have the chance to vote on a motion pulling the parties Ministers out of the
Executive. Trimble’s problem is that while he might win the argument on policing he
night well lose on the wider guestion, given all the accumulated frustrations and the

weakness of vesterday’s IRA statement;

while there are strong political and practical advantages in securing SDLP, UUP and
DUP nominations before midnight (Adams has already told us Sinn Féin will not
nominate), with suspension imminent they are not so overwhelming that we should give

CONFIDENTIAL
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commitments that we shall come to regret. There are two flanks we need to watch. One is
not to give promises which will enrage the SDLP. The other is not to saddle ourselves with a

t which has insufficient talent, and/or is excessively polarised and has an inadequate

you cannot give a firm commitment tonight on the identity of the chair and vice-chair,
because there is a process which can only take place after all the political nominations are in
and the independent appointments made. This does not stop you having an initial exchange
with Trtmble and Paisley (and separately with Mallon) over who might and might not be

suitable;

in the present heightened atmosphere there is a substantial risk that Trimble and Paisley will
need to pass on to colleagues whatever assurances you give, with the result that they will
then seep into the public domain. This is a dilemma both for you and them and you may
want to surface it early in the discuss since it goes to the heart of whether what they need

from tonight’s meeting is actually deliverable:

there is some bluffing going on on all sides. If there is to be a Board the UUP and DUP
will want to be on it. So we must not scem too desperate to hook them, particularly at a
moment when they think they have maximum leverage. The ough 1t has its risks, the
imminence of suspension means that ai y set-back today can in principle be retrieved next

week

wWIOLUK,

¢ arithmetic
By way of reminder, the party entitlements ure UUP 3. D DUP 2, SDLP 3, Sinn Féin 2. We now

know for certain that at midnight tonight we will pot have Sinn Féin nominations. So immediately

thereafter we would be able to invite the UUP and DUP, assuming they had already nominated, to give

us 2 additional names, bringing the distribution to UUP 4, DUP 3, SDLP 3. You may want to begin

the meeting by revealing that we have had, from Adams orally, a Sinn Féin refusal. You might go on

that if by midnight only the UUP and the SDLP had nominated you would immediately invite
P to submit 2 additional nominations, the SDLP 1 and the Alliance 1, bringing the distribution

5, SDLP 4 and Alliance 1, This may hetp to focus Dr Paisley’s mind. The drawback with

CONFIDENTIAL
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this tactic is that, if pressed on the effects of suspansion, you could not deny the fact that, by law, the

DUP would then have a fresh opportumty 1o norminate upon restoration.

Scenarios

[n deciding tactics for this gvening you may want o have in mind the following scenarios:

scenario 1 —We get the three parties to agree to nominate this evening. This is the most

benign outcome. Afier a 24 hour suspension we invite them to confirm that their position on

nomination remains unchanged (strictly we would need to confirm with Sinn Féin as well

Then in the course of next week we would finalise

the independent and chair, vice ¢hair 4 ypointments getting the Board up and running by our
public target date of end September. 1 we mov ed into indefinite suspension in due course,

we would simply re-appoint all .

scenario 2 — both unionist parties 1 efuse to nominate today. In that event suspension will

come as a relief, giving us cover 1or: borting the process. The expectation is that we would

then start it over again shortly afier restoration. though there would be a judgement over the

srecise moment. We might sull manage (o get the Board up and running in the course of
veck, but if by then UUP politics ' is conceivable that we would be

until indefinite suspension 1

scenario 3 — the UUP and SD1 P sign up tonight but the DUP, like Sinn Féin refuse -

this is notentially messy. because you ¢ ould not deny the L

YUP a further opportunity to

rrespective of whether they chose 1o take advantage of 1, we

nominaie arer restoration.

ing the Board up and running next week, given UUP

i almost certainly succeed

Distribution List

WILLIAM FITTALL
11 Millbank
Ext 6469 (Fax: 6479)
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Mr Stephens
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Mr Tatham, No 10
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" An Phoblacht

REPUBLICAN NEWS

PRESS RELEASE

EMBARGOED UNTIL 9PM 19TH SEPTEMBER

The following statement will appear in tomorrow’s edition of An
Phoblacht/Republican News.

First of all we wish to extend our sympathy to the people of the United States and especially to
the families and friends of the victims of the deplorable attacks in New York, Washington and
Pennsylvania.
On August 8 we confirmed that the IRA leadership had agreed a scheme with the 1ICD to put
IRA arms completely and verifiably beyond use. This unprecedented IRA initiative was the
result of lengthy discussions with the IICD over a long period. It was another expression of our
willingness to enbance the peace process and it involved considerable problems for us and for
our organisation.
The IRA leadership's ability to speedily and substantially progress the decision was completely
undermined by the setting of further preconditions and the outright rejection of the IICD
statement by the UUP leadership. Subsequent actions by the British government including a
continued failure to fulfil its commitments, removed the conditions necessary for progress. On
August 14 we withdrew our proposal.
However, as an earnest of our willingness to resolve the issue of arms, the IRA leadership wish
to confirm that our representative will intensify the engagement with the IICD. This dialogue is
within the context of our commitment to deal satisfactorily with the question of arms. It is with
a view to accelerating progress towards the comprehensive resolution of this issue.
Progress will be directly influenced by the attitude of other parties to the peace process,
including- and especially, the British government. The IRA's commitment is without question.
However, as we have said before, Peace making and peace keeping is a collective effort. It is
our considered view that the Irish peace process can succeed. The continued failure or refusal
to sustain political process and to deliver real and meaningful change has a direct bearing on
how this will be accomplished.
The IRA has contributed, consistently and in a meaningful way to the creation of a climate
which would facilitate the search for a durable settlement. We will continue to do so including
through our engagement with the I[ICD, particularly at this difficult time, and in the period
immediately ahead.
We also wish to state our attitude to the arrests of three Irishmen in Colombia. There has been a
lot of ill-founded and mischievous speculation about these arrests and some ill-considered and
aggressive comment directed at our organijsation.
We wish to make it clear that the Army Council sent no one to Colombia to train or to engage in
i oup. The IRA has not interfered in the internal affairs of
IRA is not a threat to the peace process in Ireland or in
Colombia. The three men have asserted their support for the process and we accept that.

P O'Neill, Irish Republican Publicity Bureau, Dublin.
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10 DOWNING STREET
LONDON SWI1A 2AA

From the Private Secretary 19 September 2001
Dear Paul

MEETING WITH UUP

The Prime Minister met a UUP team consisting of David Trimble, Sir Reg
Empey and David Campbell at 1300 today. Jonathan Powell, Bill Jeffrey and I
were present throughout. Your Secretary of State joined the meeting at about
1330. The first part of the meeting, focused on the political process, was
relatively good tempered. The second part, on policing, was characterised by
several spells of Trimble incandescence.

Political process

The Prime Minister said that the combination of Colombia and the attacks
on the US seemed to have created a new situation. Sinn Fein/IRA were under
intense pressure, including from the US. He had seen Adams on Monday and
had had an unprecedentedly plain conversation with him. Adams had indicated a
change of position and had said he wanted to meet with Trimble to tell him about
this and about what the IRA now planned to do. Sinn Fein were indicating that
the IRA would need a period of 2-3 weeks to prepare for an act of
decommissioning. Trimble and Empey asked a series of questions: had Adams
been clear and unequivocal? Would the decommissioning be convincing? Would
it satisfy the unionist man on the street? The Prime Minister said Adams had
been positive on all these points and had indicated that he wanted to reassure
Trimble personally.

Empey asked what would happen if Adams did not deliver. The Prime
Minister said this would put us back in suspension/review territory. Empey
complained that suspension left Sinn Fein unpunished. Should the UUP conclude
that nothing could happen in Northern Ireland without Sinn Fein participation?
The Prime Minister said the question was one of practicality, not principle: it
was unlikely that the SDLP would partner the UUP in such circumstances.

CONFIDENTIAL - PERSONAL
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Trimble said the present situation created a uniquely favourable context for
progress. Sinn Fein were in a hole. There would soon be a new SDLP
leadership which he expected to be more acquiescent to any firm lead given by
the two governments. This US Administration was more likely than its
predecessor to stiffen the Taoiseach. All of this had inclined him to suggest that
the Prime Minister, Taoiseach and US President should combine together to
deliver an ultimatum to the Republicans that they should either decommission in
the next few weeks or else the two governments would amend the Northern
Ireland Act to allow for a devolved administration excluding Sinn Fein. On the
basis of some informal conversations with SDLP politicians at the recent
conference in Cambridge, he was confident the SDLP would fall in behind such a
move.

Trimble conceded that Sinn Fein’s latest moves changed the picture. But it
would be a huge problem for the UUP getting through the 2-3 week period
demanded by Sinn Fein if there was nothing in the public domain. There was a
strong feeling on the part of the even the most liberal unionists that the moral
basis for the Good Friday Agreement had disappeared. Empey argued that if the
IRA had wanted to move, they could easily have done so this week. He
interpreted this as a tactical kick into touch. The Prime Minister said he could
understand why people might look at it this way. But it was undeniable that the
overall context had changed dramatically in recent weeks. In his conversation on
Monday, the Prime Minister sensed that Adams had grasped that Sinn Fein faced
a moment of choice. Adams had justified the 2-3 week delay with reference to
the need to prepare opinion within the movement. Whether one believed that or
not, the right thing was surely to press on and put Sinn Fein/IRA to the test. He

was therefore inclined to go for another temporary suspension in order to buy a
further six weeks.

Trimble asked what rationale could be provided to justify this. Bill Jeffrey
said that a statement could be made drawing attention to the steps forward on
decommissioning and policing in the last six weeks and to the distractions of the
Ardoyne and the attacks on the US which had prevented greater progress.
Trimble said that a further extension would only be acceptable in the context of a
clear ultimatum having been given to the Republicans setting out the threat of
changed institutional architecture. Without this he could not hang on to the
leadership of the party. He was not prepared to be hung out to dry.

Jonathan Powell suggested working on the Irish so that the Prime Minister
and Taoiseach could make a joint statement on Friday night. We should aim to
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pin the Irish down to accepting indefinite suspension in the absence of
decommissioning. Trimble said we should go further and pin the Irish down to
changing the institutional architecture as a fallback. Empey suggested planting a
question at the Prime Minister’s press conference with Bush in Washington which
would prompt Bush to make a firm statement of the US position. The Prime
Minister said we would look at this.

The Prime Minister concluded that we should proceed on the basis
described. It would be important that Trimble met Adams. Trimble said this
caused him no problem - only diary issues had prevented a meeting from
happening already. Empey said the UUP could not guarantee a response today.
They would need to take a judgement based on the meeting with Adams, the
language in the Taoiseach’s speech today, the joint statement with the Taoiseach
on Friday night and the Prime Minister’s press conference with Bush in
Washington. Trimble said he would need to sniff the air “over the weeken i
He could only live with a one day suspension if there was a strong rationale.
Otherwise he would “parachute out”. The Prime Minister asked if this meant
pulling his Ministers out of the Executive. Trimble replied cryptically that he
had more than one option up his sleeve. The Prime Minister and Bill Jeffrey
warned Trimble that Sinn Fein might be playing for time precisely so that it was
the UUP that walked away first. They should factor this into their calculations.

The Secretary of State said he had been sceptical about IRA intentions
back in August. He was less so now. The context had changed and the IRA
knew this. Colombia and the attacks on the US had strengthened the position of
those within the movement who favoured a political approach. He believed there
was the prospect of movement within a timescale tolerable to the UUP. It was
very important that Trimble spoke to Adams.

Empey repeated that the UUP could not give an assurance today. On the
basis of the facts available today, he did not see sufficient justification for a
further six week extension. Empey claimed it was only a matter of time before a
connection was established between UBL and the IRA. On closer questioning, it
transpired that this assertion was based on a remark made by the White House
spokesman to a GMU journalist to the effect that the US Administration regarded
the IRA as part of international terrorism.
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Policing

Trimble said the Secretary of State was not doing enough to help the
unionists. The composition of the Police Board was hugely important for them.
Paisley could be brought on board simply by including the one individual
recommended by him for inclusion amongst the nine independent members. The
Secretary of State said he was aware of what Paisley wanted. He was doing his
utmost to look into the feasibility of this.

Trimble complained that the NIO had decided on 2 November as the
transition date. The Secretary of State said no such decision had been made.
Trimble retorted angrily (from here on he was in more or less permanent outburst
mode) that he had been given this date by two senior people in the administrative
structures which dealt with this issue. There was clearly a failure of
communication within the NIO. The Secretary of State repeated that no decision
had been taken on the 2 November date, whatever Trimble may have been told.
In fact, 2 November was not a feasible transition date because the new recruits
would not be coming on stream until mid-November. Trimble said that no
transition date before next spring would be acceptable. He claimed the Secretary
of State had now as good as admitted that the transition date would be in mid-
November. The Secretary of State repeated that no decision had been taken.

Campbell raised the issue of symbols. Behind this lay the whole question
of sovereignty. Things were heading towards a situation in which even portraits
of the Queen could not be displayed in police stations. Empey argued that this
was an issue on which it was necessary to stand back and take a broad view.

Sensitivities had to be taken account of. Removing symbols did not create a
neutral working environment - instead it rode roughshod over the views of the

majority of the community. The Secretary of State said that work was in hand on
defining a neutral working environment. There were claims that an officer
supervising this work was being over-zealous. Any number of rumours were
flying around about the removal of memorials and a ban on photographs of old
award presentations. The Secretary of State had accordingly spoken to the Chief
Constable who in turn had made a statement aimed at clarifying things. Trimble
said he had not seen the statement but his understanding, based on a letter
received from the Secretary of State, was that it did not resolve the issue of
displaying portraits of the Queen. He also believed that any reassurance the
statement offered on memorials was based on an overly narrow definition of what
constituted a memorial. The Secretary of State said nothing was finalised and
care was being taken to avoid insensitivity to individuals. Trimble replied that
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the policing reforms as a whole were riddled with insensitivities not simply to
individuals but to the force as a whole. The Secretary of State evidently knew
nothing about feelings within the RUC. The Secretary of State pointed out that
he had met six groups of policemen in recent weeks (and on this evidence the
symbolic issues refered to by Trimble were not foremost amongst their
concerns). The Prime Minister said these were tricky issues. But it was a
mistake to think that the principle of consent enshrined in the GFA had to be
expressed solely through symbols. Trimble said he accepted the need for balance
but at present unionists were being given nothing.

Campbell turned the discussion to the Criminal Justice Review and the
removal of coats of arms from inside court houses. The UUP had suggested the
compromise of leaving coats of arms on the inside of existing buildings and only
applying the review recommendation to new buildings. Trimble said that
although he had not consulted the Northern Ireland judiciary he had good reason
to believe they were opposed to the changes on symbols recommended in the
review. The Secretary of State said he had held back publication of the CJR
implementation plan for several weeks in deference to UUP sensitivities. But
there would be time to go through all this. The immediate priority was to make
progress on policing.

The Prime Minister said that we would look further into the concerns on
policing and ensure that a sensible approach was being taken on issues such as
portraits, awards and memorials. Unionists needed to avoid arguing themselves
into the position where they claimed they had got nothing out of the Good Friday
Agreement. That was not the case. Trimble said he thought the GFA had
secured the principle of consent: he had since discovered this meant nothing to
nationalists or to the NIO.

I am copying this letter to Sir Christopher Meyer (Washington).

Yours ever

MICHAEL TATHAM

Paul Priestly
NIO
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CONVERSATION WITH TIM DALTON

| spoke to Dalton this afternoon.

2. | said that the meeting with Trimble had been difficult. He was by no
means sure that he could hold the position for a further six weeks. For
him to do so, there needed to be a clear rationale for the lifting of the
suspension, which laid it on the line for Sinn Féin in terms which
amounted to an ultimatum by the two Prime Ministers. We were thinking
about how best to deal with this, and would put some ideas to the Irish

as soon as possible.

3. 1told Dalton that the Prime Minister had been pretty frank with
Trimble about what was going on, and had encouraged him to expect
Adams to be equally frank. Anything Dalton could do to get Adams to
give Trimble the best possible account would be welcome. | had a real
fear that he would equivocate and Trimble would back off. We shouldn’t
ignore the passibility that Adams wanted the unionists to walk away.
Dalton agreed there was a risk of an unsuccessful Adams/Trimble
encounter. The Taoiseach had already spoken to Adams to encourage
him to do his best. Adams had told him that he planned to speak to

Dalton and me to catch up before he met Trimble.

s
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. 4. Dalton added that he had mentioned to Adams that the Secretary of
State might suspend the institutions as early as tomorrow evening.
Adams had not appeared to have any particular problem with this. He
was meeting people today, and Dalton had a feeling that the IRA
statement might appear during the course of tomorrow. It would not go
as far as to reinstate the August proposal to de Chastelain, because there

was still some thought being given to the question of method.

[Bill Jeffrey]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank & 6447

P o
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THE NEXT FEW DAYS
| attach:

* A possible sequence ot meetings/announcements far the next few

days.

The first drafts of some of the key statements, including the

announcement of suspension (Annax A), a joint statement from the
Prime Minister and the Taoiseach (Annex B) and the announcement

of restoration (Annex C).

2. This sequence assumnes that the Suspension Order is signed
TOMorrGw and comes into eff=¢: at midright. Adm nistratively, there is
much 1o be said for bringirg it into effect at midnight because it minimises
confusion over who is legallv in charge at any given point. But, because
we need to have a review with the Irish Government before we can
resiore devolution and the current plan is to have this meeting on Friday

In Brussels, it means that suspension must then be introduced on

s
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' Thursday night, rather than Friday night. That coincides with the deadline

for nominations to the Policing Board.

3 The alternative would be to bring suspension into effect at mid-day
on Friday (administratively messy, but possible} so that it is still in force

pefore the meeting with the Irish in Brussels later that day. Or to bring it
ifto ferce at midnight on Friday and hold at least some part of the review

meeting on Saturday.

é y)arw/{/::;m 5@@/{@;:@/

JONATHAN STEPHENS

11 Miltbank

& 6467 {Fax: 6479)

BRENT Fax 0Q20-7210-0843

e-mail Jonathan.Stephens@nio.x.gsi.gov.uk

Ly |
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. POSSIBLE SEQUENCE

Thursday Adams,/Trimble meeting.

SoS/Paisley/Trimble meeting: policing.

Fourther contacts with Trimble/Mallon/Adams on 1-day

suspension.

PM/Bush press conference: “No excuse for terrarism in
any context. New situation makes it all the more
Important 1o shaw the peace process is moving forward,
and imperain e that all paramilitary groups demonstrate
their commitment to peace and deal satisfactorily with

the arms issue.”

Suspensior order: takes effect from midnight. Possible

Statement al Arinex A,

Midnight: deediine for Palicing Board nominations.

PM/Taoiseach 2nd So0S/Cowen meeting(s) in Brussels:

possibie joint statement at Annex B.

Restaration ¢rde. tekes effect from midnight. Possible

statement at Annex C.

Saturday Seek confirmation of Policing Board nominations {or re-

iISsue invitations),

JASHGRIE2.18.€, 200N
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. SUSPENSION ANNOUNCEMENY

We are now very close to tha end cf the current six week period.

Thase six weeks have seen important progress. We have published the
updated Implementation Plan for policing. The SDLP have commirttad

themselves to support the new police service. | have invited the parties
10 make their political nominations to the new Folicing Board. The Human
Rights Commission nave publishid their consuitation document on a Bill

of Rights.

But progress has been slower than | had hoped. Events here and across
the world have overshadowed recent weeks. The tension and protests in

North Belfast have reminded us that peace must be built locally.

The terrorist attrocities in the United States have brought into sharper
focus than ever befare the choics between democracy and terror - 3

chaice with no reom for ambigu 1.

But these events have taken energy away from resolving the political
impasse. The Governments set sut, in their proposals issued after the
Westan Park talks, what needed 1o ke done including the indispensable
need for decommissioning. here remains no alternative if we are to

implement the Good Friday Agrecment in full.

Neither Government believes immediate elections will help 1o resolve the
fundamental issue - indeed, thev will dictract from 1t. Therz needs now
to be a clear focus on the necd for decommissioning and the restoration

af confidence and stability in the institutions.
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In the absence of such confidence, | have today signed a suspension

order which will take effect at midnight tonight.

| expect to meet the Irish Foreign Minister, Brian Cowen, very soon to

conduct a review as required by the suspensian legislation. In the light of

that and other consultations, | hope to be able tc restore the aperation of

the devolved institutions very quickly.
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ANNEX B

PRIME MINISTER/TAOISEACH: POSSIBLE JOINT STATEMENT

The Prime Minister and the Taoiseach met in Brussels today (3ccompanied

by the Secretary of State for Noithern Ireland and the Minister of Foreign

Affairs]. They reviewed the situation in Northern lreland, in the light of

the suspension of the devolved institutions announced yesteraay.

They repeated their determinatian to play their full part in securing an end
to terrorism wherever it occurred. They agreed that in the current
cituation it was all the more nporezEnt 10 carry the peace process in
Northern Ireland forward. The proposals they had issued after the
Weston Park talks remained the hest praspect of securing the full

implementation of the Good Friday Agreement.

The decommissioning of paramintary weapons was an indispensable part
ot thase proposals and the Good Fridsy Agreement. It was now
imperative for paramilitary groups 10 demonstrate their commitment to
resolving outstanding issues oy txclusiiely peaceful means by a credible

start to tnhe decommissioning of terrorist weapons.

Bath agreed that this was the fundamental issue which needed to be
addressed and resolved now. Frogress would send a message of hope
around the world. It would restara confidence and stability in the political
institutions. It would be a decisive step in the full implemantation of the
Good Friday Agreement. Failure wouid have clear consequences for those

gsponsible.
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They agreed that the prospects for success would be enhanced by the

continued operation of the devoived institutions for a further limited

period, and that imrnediate elections would simply distract energy and

focus from the fundamental issua. They noted that the Secretary of State
for Northern lreland expected to make an announcement soon on the
future operation of the institutions, in the light of the review being

conducted.
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RESTORATION ANNOUNCEMENT
I have reviewed the current cituarion with the Irish Foreign Minister, Brian

Cowen, and in consultations witn party leaders.

i have today signed an order to restore the operation of the devolved

insttutions tfrom midnight tonight

Trnis has the effect that the Assembly has a further six weeks in which to

slect a First and Deputy First Minister. [n the meantime Sir Reg Empey
and Seamus Malton will exercise the functions of the First and Deputy

First Minister.

The fundamental issue remains  There will not be confidence and stability
N the pohitical institutions while therz are doubls about the commitment
of soma ty exclusively peacaful means snd the issue of paramilitary

WEEPOoNs remains unresalved.

We need to confront and iesolve this issue now. The attention of the
worid i focussed as never before an the stark choice between democracy

and terrar.

There nas naver been a berter mament to show the world that in Northern
Ireland we can take further decisive steps to put the violerce and
weapons 0f the past behind us and resolve what conflicts and disputes

remarn by exclusively peaceful means.

I have restcred ths institutions ne v because | believe that a further six

week pericd. in which the instititiens continue 1G operate, provides the
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hest - and, perhaps, final - opportunity 1o focus on that challenge. There

is no reason to think that if we cannot resolve it now, elections will meke

any difference.

So all our efforts and focus MuUst NOW be on this issue. If we fail now,

those responsible will carry a heavy burden.

TOTHL F.16
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From the Private Secretary 19 September 2001

Dear Paul

WORKING BREAKFAST WITH THE TAOISEACH: 19 SEPTEMBER

The Prime Minister hosted a working breakfast for the Taoiseach this
morning. The Taoiseach was accompanied by Brian Cowen, Michael Collins,
Tim Dalton, Brendan Scannell, Martin Mansergh and the Ambassador. Your
Secretary of State, Jonathan Powell, Bill Jeffrey, William Fittall and I were
present on our side.

There was a brief discussion on international terrorism (which did not

really break any new ground) at the beginning and end of the meal. The
Taoiseach mentioned that Ireland would be supportive of the proposals put
forward by the UK for tomorrow’s JHA Council.

Decommissioning

The Taoiseach said that Colombia and the attacks on the US had decisively
changed the dynamics of the situation. Sinn Fein/IRA had no option now: they
had to decommission. He believed they would do so. Tim Dalton said this was
also his view. He now believed it was simply a matter of time. Sinn Fein/IRA
were not ruling out a move in the next few days, but this was unlikely for
logistical reasons. At the start of August he had felt the chances of an act of
decommissioning were 60/40: he now felt they were 90/10.

The Secretary of State said, if this was right, there were now three
requirements. The first was for time: Sinn Fein had to understand that a
temporary suspension was a legal necessity. The second was for an IRA
statement. And finally, we needed Trimble to accept our approach. If he pulled
his Ministers from the Executive we would be sunk. The Secretary of State
added that he hoped to make progress on policing in the next few days. This,
together with a suitable IRA statement, would provide cover for a roll-over of the
six week extension.
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The Taoiseach said that Adams would have a big part to play in reassuring
Trimble. Dalton said Adams was well aware of the significance of squaring
Trimble. He intended to meet with Trimble (it was not clear when) and “shake
hands” on his intentions. On suspension, Dalton said Sinn Fein would never
publicly support this but they were aware of the realities. They had privately
acknowledged that the temporary suspension last month had been well handled.

The Prime Minister said he had told Adams that an act of
decommissioning had to be accompanied by an IRA statement addressing the
question of intent. David Ervine’s question at Weston Part remained relevant.
Trimble was currently in a very antsy frame of mind. His party had been freaked
out by Colombia. He might be inclined either to make additional demands, or to
manufacture a series of recurring crises over the requirement for further acts of
decommissioning. We had to avoid these dangers, but we should not
underestimate their difficulty. Brian Cowen said we were on the verge of
achieving what Trimble had always said he wanted. We could not allow
ourselves to end up in a situation where decommissioning had been delivered and
yet Trimble upped the stakes and threatened to pull out his Ministers in order to
secure an indefinite suspension. The Secretary of State said a great deal would
depend on Trimble’s assessment of the significance of what was being done. He
had to be reassured on that.

Dalton returned to the question of an IRA statement of intent. He had
suggested to Adams a formula along the lines of “with completion of the
implementation of the Good Friday Agreement, we will only have recourse to
peaceful means”. Adams had shown interest in this formula, but the immediate
IRA statement expected this weekend would not be so strong. The Secretary of
State said that the strength of this weekend’s IRA statement related directly both
to the prospects of keeping Trimble in play and to providing us with cover for a
further six week extension.

Cowen (a little tetchily) said that substantial decommissioning was on offer
which would allow de Chastelain to say that weapons sufficient to sustain a
terrorist campaign for x years had been destroyed. This should be sufficient to
take decommissioning off the political agenda and reduce it to a technical matter
for de Chastelain. The goal should be to take decommissioning out of the
equation so that the political process could start to function normally. This
would not work if the UUP carried on acting “as if they were a sub-committee of
the IICD”. The Secretary of State said the stronger the IRA statement, the easier
it would be to achieve Cowen’s goal. Dalton said there were likely to be two
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IRA statements: an initial one this weekend, and one that accompanied the act of
decommissioning. If we were too prescriptive on the contents of the first
statement, we would blow the prospects of a strong second statement. Dalton
appreciated that this made life awkward for Trimble - hence the importance of
Adams giving him a private reassurance. Jonathan Powell said Trimble and

Adams tended to speak in different political languages: we needed to ensure that
the message had been properly transmitted and received.

The Prime Minister said we should not underestimate the problem for the
UUP. Colombia had given the impression to the outside world that anything
done on decommissioning at one end was rendered worthless by continuing IRA
procurement at the other. Adams needed to set out an end-point. The Secretary
of State added that events in the US had created a new political climate in which
it was not enough simply to cease acts of terrorism. The whole apparatus of
terrorism needed to be dismantled. This applied to punishment beatings,
organised crime and intimidation. The Taoiseach acknowledged this. This had
to be part of the IRA folding up their tents.

Dalton said he had mentioned to Adams that international proscription of
terrorist organisations was one of the ideas likely to feature at tomorrow’s JHA
Council. He had added that a proposal along these lines might well prove
unstoppable in current circumstances. The best insurance policy for the IRA
against proscription was to decommission. Dalton said Adams had taken the
point.

The Secretary of State said the preferred way forward seemed to be a one
day suspension to buy further time (no-one dissented). In which case, careful
thought needed to be given to the sequencing. Trimble had to be squared (for
which an IRA statement would be required). A further six weeks could be
justified on the basis of the progress achieved during the initial six weeks (on
policing and decommissioning) and by the fact that the Ardoyne disturbances and
the attacks on the US had been major distractions. All this would need to be
sorted out in the next two days.

Jonathan Powell said there was a danger that, if we gave the parties a
further six weeks, Adams and Trimble would each be inclined to delay moving
(on decommissioning and policing respectively) until the very end of the period.
The Taoiseach said that in normal circumstances this would certainly be Adams’
instinct. But right now he was under unprecedented external pressure pulling the
other way. Dalton said Adams would also be aware that the alternative to
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decommissioning was indefinite suspension (from the other end of the table
Cowen growled that this would be accepting the unconstitutional).

Bill Jeffrey pointed out that Trimble would be demanding that the Prime
Minister and Taoiseach said something very robust in public about what was

required of the IRA. The Taoiseach said he was making a speech to his party
today which contained some language which would please Trimble.

Policing

The Irish team talked a bit about the Sinn Fein position on policing.
Cowen said he had had a long meeting on policing with Sinn Fein on Monday.
His impression was that they were reviewing their tactics but were sticking to
their demands on particular points. Dalton said he had been pressing Sinn Fein
to move from a position of active hostility on policing to one of acquiescence.
The Taoiseach noted that Sinn Fein’s posters in Dublin had switched from an
anti-RUC theme to commemorating the 1981 hunger strikes.

SDLP

The Prime Minister asked for an Irish assessment of the likely succession
to John Hume. The Taoiseach said that a poll in yesterday’s Irish News had
shown Mallon with 44 % against Durkan’s 27%. Moreover, Mallon’s support
was consistently strong across all regions. Mallon’s decision not to stand was
“dead right for all kinds of reasons”. On the face of it this left the field open for
Durkan, but much would depend on where Mallon’s support ended up. Whoever
won would face a stiff challenge: the SDLP was crying out for rejuvenation.

UDA

The Taoiseach expressed concern about continuing UDA violence. The
Secretary of State set out the difficulties. It was hard (because of intimidation) to
get the evidence necessary to lift those responsible for the pipe bombings.
Specifying the UDA risked being counter-productive by exposing the lack of
practical sanctions available. It would also lead instantly to a clammer from
Unionists calling for the IRA to be specified in the light of Colombia.
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RIRA

Dalton warned that we should be especially vigilant in relation to the
dissident threat. They would certainly aim to raise their profile at the moment
when the IRA looked like decommissioning. RIRA would be unmoved by the
new political atmosphere created by the attacks on the US.

I am copying this letter to Sir Ivor Roberts (Dublin).

Yours ever
MICHAEL TATHAM

Paul Priestly
NIO
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CONVERSATION WITH GERRY ADAMS

Adams phoned me at 4.30pm this afternoon.

2. After a brief exchange on Policing Board nominations which | am
recording separately for a wider audience, Adams said that he had
arranged to meet David Trimble tomorrow morning, he thought at noon.
He had hoped by now to be in a more advanced position than he was,
and was concerned about how to handle the meeting. He wondered how

the Prime Minister’s meeting had gone earlier today.

3. | said that it had not been easy. Trimble had been doubtful about
holding his party for another six weeks, and insistent that there should be
a clear and convincing rationale for such an extension. The Prime
Minister had told Trimble that he believed that recent events had caused
Adams to change his position, and that there was good chance of
decommissioning happening in the coming weeks, but that Adams wanted
to meet Trimble face to face in order to reassure him. | had thought, from
our earlier conversation and from Tim Dalton’s account, that Adams

intended to be open with Trimble about what was happening.

4. Adams said that the problem was that he could not have the same
kind of conversation with Trimble as he had had with the Prime Minister.

Ay s
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Some of what he said could well end up in the papers, which would be
disastrous. He was therefore going to have to think quite carefully about
what he said. | said that in that case, knowing how opaque Adams can
be when he wanted to, my fear was that we could end up with Trimble
distinctly un-reassured, which would create a very difficult situation. If
Adams explained to Trimble what was in his mind, and emphasised that it
could all be lost if there was any publicity, | thought there was a good
chance that Trimble would respect that. Adams said that he was damned
if he did and damned if he didn’t. He would be grateful if Dalton and |
could give some thought to the matter. He would try to speak to both of

us before tomorrow’s meeting.

5. Adams is partly playing games of the usual kind, but it is true that
there is a distinct difference between alerting Trimble to an act within
days and one within weeks. | think our interest is still, just, in bringing
the two together tomorrow and urging Adams to be as open as possible,
Tim Dalton, to whom | have spoken again, agrees, and will encourage

Adams to take a chance by taking Trimble into his confidence.

6. Michael Tatham has made the helpful suggestion that if, despite all
our efforts, it becomes clear that Adams is not going to come up to
scratch, | might warn David Campbell, and explain to him that in our
judgement this reflected fear of leaks on Adams’ part, rather than
necessarily implying any retreat from the position as described to Trimble

by the Prime Minister.

[Bill Jeffrey]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank @& 6447
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Bill Jeffrey
18 September 2001

JONATHAN POWELL : Secretary of State for NI
Michael Tatham

CONVERSATION WITH TIM DALTON

Dalton rang me at about 1915, having just completed his meeting with Adams

and McGuinness.

They had talked to some people during the course of the day. They would try for
action before the weekend but realistically thought it extremely unlikely. They
were attracted by the “muddling through” option, but could not deliver by the
middle of next week. Dalton had emphasised that it would only work if we could
be certain of delivery by then, and even then depended on checking the legal
aspects. It had transpired that the leadership were telling them that they would
need several weeks to bring people on side. Adams and McGuinness had
accepted that, in these circumstances, the Government would face a dilemma.
They did not want to be associated in any way with suspension, but the message

had been that they would tolerate it if that was what the Prime Ministers decided.

Dalton had asked whether there was any chance on getting the proposal on
methodology back on the table before the weekend. The answer had been that
this would only happen shortly before the act itself took place. They were,
however, contemplating a statement by the IRA before the weekend. Dalton had
worked on this with them, and they had gone off with something on the following

lines:
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“The IRA can confirm that, against the background of our commitment to
the peace process, its representative will intensify engagement with the
IICD in the period immediately ahead, within the context of our
commitment to deal satisfactorily with the question of arms, with a view to

accelerating progress towards a comprehensive resolution of this issue.”

I said that, in the current heightened atmosphere, this would be seen as pretty
pathetic and not matching up to the requirements of the situation. Dalton said
that he agreed, but it seemed as far as they were likely to be able to go. I asked
how Adams was proposing to handle Trimble. Dalton said that he was planning

to speak to him tomorrow, but did not at this stage know what he would say.

As we agreed, this drives us much closer to the conclusion that we should go for
a one-day suspension, followed by six weeks in which the IRA could either do

the business or not, provided Unionists are willing to give it a bit longer.

As you will have seen from my note of earlier today, Empey at least is in that
position, arguing that recent events give us an unprecedented opportunity to put
the Provisionals under irresistible pressure. Tomorrow’s meeting will give the

Prime Minister an opportunity to discover if Trimble takes the same view.

Arag. JFanosn

W Bill Jeffrey
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From: Jonathan Powell
Date: 18 September 2001

PRIME MINISTER cc: Michael Tatham
Tom Kelly
David Manning

NORTHERN IRELAND
You are seeing Bertie tomorrow for breakfast and Trimble for lunch.

We had agreed a way forward with the Irish this morning, but this will need to
be modified in light of what Adams has told Tim Dalton this evening (see
attached note from Bill).

Adams has told Dalton that there is still an outside possibility of an act of
decommissioning happening by Sunday. They were attracted by the idea of
muddling through. But Adams said it was likely that they would need several
more weeks before an act could take place. The muddling through option would
not therefore work and he therefore reluctantly accepted we would need a 24-
hour technical suspension to buy 6 more weeks. He said as long as he did not
have to endorse this he could live with it.

Trimble is pretty opposed to another 24-hour suspension, but as you will see
from the attached note Empey likes it. And I think we can sell it to Trimble and
Empey on the basis that we now believe an act is going to take place and the
current international situation gives us an unprecedented opportunity to put
maximum pressure on Adams.

On this basis I suggest we agree the following with the Irish:

a) If an act of decommissioning takes place before Sunday we welcome it
and persuade the Unionists to stay in the institutions.

b) If it does not, but Adams tells us it will happen by say Wednesday next
week we try to muddle through as we had agreed with the Irish this
morning. But see the attached legal advice; this is tricky and John Reid
is very uncomfortable with this approach.

c) If Adams says there will be an act but not for some weeks (his current
position) we suspend for 24 hours on Saturday and buy another 6
weeks. We explain that we are doing this because of the current
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international situation and because we believe this is an unprecedented
opportunity to close a chapter on terrorism in these islands.

We also need to make it clear to the Irish that an act of decommissioning will not
be enough by itself for the Unionists. It will need to be set in a process leading to
complete decommissioning. And it will need to be accompanied by a statement of
intent of the sort you were discussing with Adams yesterday to give people
confidence that the IRA really does intend to go out of business.

You will then have a difficult meeting with Trimble. In addition to selling him
this approach you will need to get him to sign up to the policing board by
Thursday (with the DUP), and listen to his grumbles about the Criminal Justice
Review.

Incidentally, when and if it comes to a review, the Irish now propose that this
should be conducted by the two governments. On the basis that we cannot
persuade Trimble to accept Clinton (and the Irish tell me Adams is against him
doing it, which illustrates why it would be a good idea) then I think this is the
best option.

You will see Bertie again on Friday night in Brussels.

Jl

JONATHAN POWELL
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FROM: JONATHAN STEPHENS
Political Directorate (L)
18 September 2001

of State (L&B) See Copy Distribution Below

SUSPENSION AND ELECTIONS: THE LEGAL POSITION

| attach a note. cleared with Home Office Legal Advisers. [t is intended to accompany
the briefing submitted by Bill Jeffrey to

morrow’s meeting with the Taociseach.

The key issue is the risks invol six week period expire without a
suspension, thereby triggering the obliga to propose a date for elections, and then
subsequently impose a suspension. When

consulted in August, the Law Officers tock
vat, although suspension could not “untrigger” the obligation, the courts
ery unlikely to require the Sacretary of State to propose a date for elections
2 could show he had acted reasonably in not proposing a date and he had
and for all that no ¢ 5 should be held during uspension and

tan | had

: La

rlier thought
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@) UsPENSION AND ELECTIONS: THE LEGAL POSITION

This note reflects advice given by the Law Officers in the run up to the 24 hour

suspension in August. It has been cleared with legal advisers.

2. The legal position is that, once the current six week period expires at midnight on
Saturday 22 September without a successful election of a First and Deputy First
Minister, the Secretary of State comes under a legal obligation to propose a date for

fresh Assembly elections.

3 The uncertainty arises over how that legal obligation interacts with any suspension

of the Assembly.

This is a situation not contempiated when the legislation was drafted. But we can

reasonably confident that:

-

+ a suspension of the Assembly, whether for 24 hours or indefinitely, before

midniaht on Saturday means that the statutory obligation to propose a date for

elections is not engaged;

if we pass midnight on Saturday, the Secretary of State is not obliged
immediately to propose a date for elections: providing he can cite some
plausible reason, such as consulting parties on the possible dates for elections
he will be allowed at least a week or 1C days before a court would entertain an

action that he was failing to discharge his obligation;

if, after midnight on Saturday but before the Assembly was dissolved for
elections, it successfully elected a First and Deputy First Minister, then the
courts would be unlikely to strike down a decision by the Secretary of State not
to call elections, on the grounds that the original cause of the obligation to call

elections had been resolved;
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« after midnight on Saturday, the Secretary of State could still suspend the
Assembly indefinitely and re-institute direct rule if, for example, the IRA failed to

deliver on any promise to decommission.

5. |tis in the last scenario, however, that the greatest uncertainty arises. While the

Secretary of State can still, after the six week period has expired, suspend the

Assembly and re-institute direct rule, it is by no means clear that this suspension has

legal obligation on the Secretary of State to set a date for

The risk is that some party, such as the DUP or Sinn Féin, could mount a challenge
he Secretary of State was still statutory obliged to set a date for elections,
otwithstanding any suspension of the Assembly. We would need to argue that the

spension trumped this, cancelled the obligation to propose a date for elections and
that there was, in any case, little point in holding elections for an Assembly that was

could not meet.

When consulted on this specific question on 6 August, the Attorney General's view

the obligation to trigger elections cannot be “untriggered” by suspension;
ot

ut the Secretary of State is entitled to have regard to the fact of suspension;

ful it would be proper to decide once and for all not to propose a date

2ctions during suspension

matter which would have 10 be Kej nder review;

CONFIDENTIAL & PERSONAL




‘ m..;.;nyi /i T 1AL & PEMSUNAL

* providing the Secretary of State could show he had acted reasonably, it is very

unlikely a court would require him to propose a date for an election:

the risks are greater if the Assembly had been dissolved before any suspension
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to Trimble that if _thﬂe‘l’ﬂ,;\’d(m’t deliver next week we

spend the institutions 1 L;:_ig_f'_u_lj;elv and not call elections, even if this

will suspend |

a guarantee from us

involves some legal risk.

111

' could tie Bertie into an understanding of this kind (which he will not like,
because of the suspension angie) it will also provide a further incentive for the

Provisionals to deliver.

mderstand it was clear from this morning’s meeting of officials that the
seriously about what to do if we reach the weekend

¥
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no further forward. It is ymportant that you have some understanding with Bertie

about this before you go abroad
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<
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a further one day suspet ;ion, to create a further six weeks (during which a
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scoping review could be held) and ¢

on Sinn Féin;
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11 { happen in the six weeks, or after an

indefinite suspension.

Your thought that Bill ¢  might help was an interesting one. But1t

rhe Washington Embassy fear it would harm

AN

would be anathema to Trimbie

relations with the Bush administration. Some time agoe Chris Meyer suggested

James Baker as someone in whom Bush would be bound to have confidence.

There may be other possibilities We suspect George Mitchell would be unwilling,
but don’t know for sure. [ think the truthis that time is too short, and just at this

moment the Americans are £00 Preoccup! ied, for it to be realistic for an outsider to

be identified and to conduct a review —or even an initial clearing of the ground -

within 81X weeks of this weekend When I saw Ric -hard Haass last week, he said

\‘L

that, if what we were U v king was a week’s stocktake,{scoping review?) he
\ >

might do it himself. This too is quite an attractive thought, but limiting the

commitment to a single week 1 mrealistic, and I don't think it would be fair to

expect more from Richard, given nis other responsibilities.

My advice would therefc
use tomorrow morriiils o 1 ke Berties mind on the involvement of an

itsider if the process becomes a:omplctdy stalled;

hut not to rush into anything. [f at the weekend there seems a good chance

that another six weeks might resolve things, there need not be a review as
such. If we hit the butters an the mood is more pessimistic, the next step
(;
)
‘}J\
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at which you and Bertie could

could be well-prepared Britis Jrish summit,

take stock and decide more deliberately on the form of any review and who

La

should conduct it.

The Irish are unlikely to raise this and I don’t suggest you should. If they

. difficult Amnesty legislation

_you will no doubt want to 12t how much more

to be post New York and iva hington. | should like the chance to talk this

1S going i

through with you at a future stage

[ am copying this to Richal | Wilson and to Ivor Roberts in Dublin.




CONFIDENTIAL

BILL JEFFREY
Political Director
18 September 2001
BJ/MR/49

o’

PS/SECRETARY OF STATE(L&B) PS/Ms Kennedy(L&B)
PS/Mr Browne(L&B)
Sir Joseph Pilling(L&B)
Mr Watkins
Mr Fittall(L&B)

Mr Maccabe

Mr Stephens

Ms Bharucha

Mr Waterworth

Mr Powell No.10

Sir Ivor Roberts HMA(D)

CALL FROM SIR REG EMPEY

Reg Empey rang me this morning. He hoped that we were all aware of how much
things have changed in recent weeks. The Colombian incident and the terrorist
attacks in the USA had exposed the contradiction in all our attitudes towards Sinn
Féin. The Taoiseach and the Prime Minister were in a very strong position, and
should now be putting intense pressure on the Provisionals. If the Prime Minister was
going to play as prominent a part in the international efforts against terrorism as
appeared to be the case, he could not “play Rambo one minute and have the boys in
for tea the next”. The Provisionals had always thought they could tough things out,
but the situation had changed.

2. Isaid that I agreed about the change in the situation. Our Ministers were keenly
aware of the opportunity which recent events provided, as, I thought, were the Irish,
who were putting it to Sinn Féin that there would never be a better time for the IRA to
move on weapons. The US Administration’s position had been obvious from Richard
Haass’ recent visit. The usual behind the scenes discussions were going on. There
were a few signs that Adams was beginning to feel the heat and might be looking for
ways of getting off the hook. The position on this was pretty unclear, but the Prime
Minister might be able to say more, following his meeting with the Taoiseach

tomorrow morning, when he saw Trimble and Empey later in the day.

F
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3. Empey said that, as he understood it, if we got to the end of the week with
nothing from Sinn Féin, there would be three options. We would either be plunged
into elections, which seemed a bizarre outcome; or there could be suspension
followed by review; or “another quickie”, by which I took him to mean a one-day
suspension. If we ended up going for the third of these, there would have to be some
rationale for it. This could be achieved if the Prime Minister, the Taoiseach and
President Bush spelt out in no uncertain terms what was required of the IRA. Empey
wondered if it might be possible to engineer some Kind of statement in the context of

Prime Minister’s visit to the United States later in the week.

4. 1took delivery of the suggestion, which Empey will be able to put direct to the
Prime Minister since I understand he is coming in with Trimble tomorrow. I also
assured him that there was no lack of understanding here of the significance of last

week’s events or of the undesirability of early Assembly elections.

5. T attach a note which Reg Empey faxed to me after our conversation, which
enlarges on his point about the opportunity presented by the Prime Minister’s visit to

the USA.

[Bill Jeffrey]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank @& 6447
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Bill
Just a note following our chat this morning.

In view of the very high standing of the Prime Minister with the American people and
their President, I believe that there is an opportunity to force the issue this week when
the PM meets Bertie and visits the US,

T am enclosing an editorial from Republican News that I think is instrictive in the
current situation. This has also been sent to John Reid and Richard Haas,

During his discussions with Bertie tomorrow I believe a firm decision is required to
end the carrot only approach, which has been taken for the Jast few years for reasons,
which we understand. We are facing the end of 2 democratically elected
Administration in Belfast this weekend due to terrorist action! That is the reality.
Following the Colombian affair, Alex Maskey’s detention in Turkey this week on a
SF delegation to the left wing hunger strikers there and the catastrophe in the TJS there
is an imperative on all three governments to ensure that terrorism does not succeed.

The PM and President Bush run the risk of 2 charge of double standards if questions
are asked about their relationship to Irish terrorists when they are calling upon the
world to renounce terrarism. So do wel!

I suggest the following: -

a) The PM and Bertie should decide that they have had enough and that they are not
prepared to see a democratically endorsed Agreement destroyed because Jrish
Republicans and Loyalists have not honoured their obligations to disarm and
follow the Mitchell principles. (There have been punishment beatings and all sorts
of activity in recent weeks)

They should resolve to enlist the support of President Bush for their decision this
week.

During the PM’s visit to the US, a question should be *planted” with a friendly
member of the press corps on the NI peace process and events upcoming this
weekend. This could set the scene for the PM and President to give clear answers
that they have waited long enough, that there is no excuse for armed groups to
continue and that further failure to disarm and the continuing threat of violence <
will not be tolerated. In other words, they have been warned- honour your
obligations or suffer rejection by all democratic governments, President Bush

could bring 2 particular poignancy to his reply. Indeed, properly crafted 1t could
deliver'a knockout blow.

Whether or not the PM has decided to fully suspend, or use the same procedure as on
125 August, it should be clear to republicans thar if they are not prepared to deal
properly with disarmament and the continuing threat of violence, then MG with the
support of Ahern and Bush will introduce measures to ensure the contimuation of a
Cross community government in Belfast without them.

Look forward to seeing you tomorrow.
Reg Empey. 18 Sept 2001.
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BEPUBLICAN News

A massive human
tragedy

The sppalling eatastrophe in New York and
Washington is abovo all a massive homag
Gragedy, The Sl extent of the casnaltjes i not
yet known but they must rm into thonsande,
The wave uf:l:od;griefandmourningisonly
beginning tu reach beyond the East Coast of the
. US. Manyhishﬁnﬁlieuwmbebme&ne
human congegnences are as yet incalculable.

This tragedy will have lasting political and
econamic cansequences. Not since the Amexican

mass bombing of civilians fram the air which
caused such devastztiap in Europe and Asia. Such
3n unprecedented event must have 3 hoge impact
on US society and politics,

rprebeasible and mpst be

deliberate killing of civilizan is alvays wiong, no
m ether it is gavarmnments, armed politica)

groupsorindividudlswhowryitout.

There has already been a yush to blame particnlar
groups. Little evidence has emcrged to back these
claims. There {5 g real danger now that the very
diverse Muslim community worldwide will bo
scapegoated. No anc should be made to snffer
because of their religion or because af the region

which they come, There is an even greater
danger that the US government and military mray
now lash out and make innoceqt civilizos in other
uountriespayﬁ:rwfhatitisdaqibing as am act of
“war.

We know anly too well bow in the Middle Esst snd
@ Central Aserica the prsuit of militaristic and
ageressive poljcy by US governments and by thase
governmegts itmsm'd,ldlbﬂwdaﬂuuf
many thousaads of innocent pepple, ¢ wiNl
compound the fragedy of 11 September 2001 if that

http://209.62.13, 153/apm/current/newy/ 1Z2fon.htm]) 18/09/2001
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. | is repeated,

The perpetraters of the atrocities ig Washington
athewYmkmaywﬂlhzveﬂreiroﬁg‘msinthc
politica] disaster area which js the Middle East,
Bue it is a disaster azea for which the ' Wes?’ and its
client governments bear much responsibility.
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MEETING WITH GERRY ADAMS

Gerry Adams called on me at Milibank for about an hour yesterday afternoon on his

way to No.10 to meet the Prime Minister.

He confirmed what Tim Dalton had told me on Saturday. He and McGuinness
1ad decided to go back to the IRA and try to persuade them to move on putting
weapons beyond use. The best outcome would be if they did so before the end of this
veek. He would aim for this, but suspected it wouldn’t be possible, either logistically
r in terms of preparing the wider movement. He had wondered about a de Chastelain
report towards the end of the week saying that the 6 August proposal was back on the

table, and that the Commission expecied it to be acted on soon. This might be

possible, but caried risks to the security of the act itself. The big news organisations

would be willing to invest resources to find out when and where it was taking place.
The question was how we could get past the weekend and create some more time in

which the IRA could follow through on their commitment.

I'said that there were several factors to consider. 1 had briefed Jonathan Powell
on our conversation on Friday. but did not know precisely where the Prime Minister
stood. He was up 10 his neck in the aftermath of last Tuesday, which had changed the
whole context dramatically. He might feel that we had waited long enough and had to
draw a line somewhere. (Adams interjected that he and PM knew each other well
enough to know that it would do no good for either to come on heavy with the other.)

talso didn’t know whether Trimble would be willing to have his Ministers soldier on
e
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after next weekend. Assuming nothing had happened by then, Trimble’s current
position was that we should simply suspend the institutions indefinitely and move into
areview. Subject to both these points, I supposed that the obvious thing to do would

be to have a one day technical suspension as in August, which would create a further

period of six weeks during which the [RA could do the business and a First and

Deputy First Minister could be re-elected. For that to be worthwhile, T thought we

going to take place and the timeframe. There were understandable concems about

security, but the more open Adams could be with Trimble, the better.

4. Adams agreed. He had been trying to meet Trimble, but it kept being
postponed, for what he was prepared to accept were legitimate diary reasons. How
much he said would depend on when he got to Trimble, and on the latter’s mood; but
if he had succeeded in getting the IRA on board, his instinct was to tell Trimble
frankly that it was going to happen. They needed, at least metaphorically, to shake

hands on it. It was worth one more effort to make the relationship work.

5. Reverting to the question of timing, Adams asked why it was necessary to have
a suspension, even for one day. It would be very problematic if he managed to get the
IRA to move, and within days we acted to suspend. Was suspension necessary in
order to have a review? [ said that it wasn’t, but, as Adams would know, if we hit
Sunday without a First and Deputy First Minister having been re-elected the Secretary
of State would be under a statutory obligation to set a date for elections. Nobody,
including Sinn Féin, wanted elections. A one-day suspension was no more than a
well-intentioned device to create a bit of space in which politics could work, not a

reassertion of direct rule for the sake of it.

6. Adams said that the road to hell was paved with good intentions. Elections were
not particularly in Sinn Féin’s interests, but it was weird that we should go to such
lengths to avoid democracy. The Good Friday Agreement said nothing about
suspension. We ought to try to find a way of keeping things going without either
suspension or a review. Was there any chance that a positive de Chastelain report of
the kind we had discussed earlier would be enough to get Trimble re-elected? 1 said

that I was sure it would not. Trimbie had long since got to the point where only the

|
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actual act would be enough to get him back. Adams agreed that was probably right.
“Thinking aloud”(!), he then postulated a sequence in which there was a de Chastelain
report later this week, on the back of which the Secretary of State could set a date for

a FM/DFM election, the implication being that the IRA would act in the intervening

period. Isaid that we could think about this and talk to the Irish, but I doubted if it

would work. The FM/DFM election date was a matter for the Assembly. I still didn’t

see why a one day suspension should be such a big deal.

7. Adams said that, on this occasion, he would not be presenting the issue to the
[RA as part of a deal. His argument would be that it was in the republican
movement’s political interests to move. But he himself would want to be satisfied
about how we and the unionists would react on such matters as the stability of the
mstitutions, OTRs and demilitarisation. It wouldn’t work if, within a month or so,
there were demands from unionists and from within the British system for another
tranche, or 1f we got to Christmas and Rita O’Hare still couldn’t go home. Irepeated
what [ had said on Friday about Ministers’ reactions to a convincing act of
decommissioning. I could not speak for the unionists, some of whom would never be
satisfied, but my impression was that Trimble wanted to get things back on track, and
not to be dogged by decommissioning for ever after. For the rest, the Weston Park
proposals stood. In particular, once weapons had been put beyond use, the security

normalisation measures would be taken. (I did not mention OTRs.)

8. Adams said that people on his side were concerned about recent meetings
between Trimble and Paisley. 1said that our assessment was that it was an
arrangement of convenience, arising from the fact that both wanted to sign up for the

Policing Board, but each needed some cover from the other.

9. lasked Adams if Sinn Féin were going to nominate to the Policing Board.
Adams said he had asked for some work to be done on options. Some favoured
joining the Board, others were opposed. His own view was that it would probably be
too much for the movement to swallow decommissioning and policing at the same
time. One possibility would be for them to tell us what would have to happen for
them to sign up, which we could cither accept or reject. But he wanted to test
opinion. There would be an Ard Fheis (I think) in a week or so. I said that the

gy
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Secretary of State was on the point of writing inviting nominations within 3 days.
Adams said this was too fast for Sinn Féin. We should think again. 1said I would

pass this on, but the Secretary of State was very keen to make progress.

BILL JEFFREY
1 Millbank @ 6447
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MEETING WITH TOM CONSTANTINE, 18 SEPTEMBER
Summary

Constantine refuses to chair or lead a review required to assess the

effectiveness of the PSNI.

Agreement reached on handling questions about the proposed review during

Constantine’s current visit to Northern Ireland.

Constantine to work with officials on seeking a way forward.
Detail
2 The Secretary of State held an urgent meeting with Tom Constantine, who was
accompanied by Al Hutchinson, earlier this afternoon in Castle Buildings to discuss the
proposed review of policing arrangements planned for 2002. William Fittall and

Robin Masefield provided support.

7 The Secretary of State said he had been briefed on Jane Kennedy’s meeting with

Constantine yesterday when he understood the Commissioner had expressed a number of

concerns about the proposed review. Constantine agreed.

4. The Secretary of State sought to clarify the Government’s intentions. We did not

want Constantine and his team to get involved in a detailed audit of the effectiveness of the
.new police service. We wanted him to fulfil two roles: firstly, we wanted him to lead a
review focused on progress with the implementation of Patten. Secondly, there was a wider
dimension — which was not necessarily for the Oversight Commissioner — which would

focus on the security context and the impact of implementation on the effectiveness of the
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police service. This wider review was intended as a means of meeting the demand from .

Unionists for an opportunity to gauge and challenge the impact of Patten on the

effectiveness of the police service. In the Government’s view, this was not unreasonable.

s The Secretary of State emphasised that we were not asking the Oversight

Commissioner to assess the security situation or the effectiveness of the police service. It
was possible to envisage a situation where Constantine chaired the review and assessed the
implementation of Patten, but would receive reports from HMIC and the Chief Constable on
the security situation and the operational effectiveness of the police service. He could also
take views from the political parties. These reports and views could be incorporated in
Constantine’s report, but political judgements on the basis of them would be a matter for
the Secretary of State. In this way, it should be possible to construct a review which would

cover:

an assessment of the security situation — based on advice from the
Chief Constable;

a report on progress with the implementation of Patten undertaken by the

Oversight Commissioner and his team;

an assessment of the impact of Patten on the effectiveness of the police service

- based on reports from the Chief Constable and HMIC.

6. The Secretary of State said that, politically, it would be difficult for HMG to maintain
that the review would focus on the implementation of Patten in a vacuum. The review
could not ignore the security context and the impact of Patten on police effectiveness. The
political parties wanted an assurance that the Secretary of State was open to persuasion to
change the legislation or the pace of change depending on the context or police

effectiveness.

7. In response, Tom Constantine set out the history of his involvement in the idea of a
review. He had been reluctant from the outset to become involved because of the risk of
contamination of the oversight process. He had then received a specific request from the
two Governments and had been pressed by the Irish Ambassador, to whom he had

explained his reasons for resistance, and had only reluctantly agreed to undertake the
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,eview with the assurance that it would not contaminate his work. He had not been

consulted about what the review would entail. At the meeting with Jane Kennedy, the
previous day, the Minister had talked about operational effectiveness, Special Branch and
the FTR. This was far away from what he had originally been led to believe was the
purpose of the review. He had spoken to his team and the universal opinion was that they
could not and should not undertake such a review. This was a job for HMIC or an

independent person. He and his colleagues would “not have a clue” about the judgements

that would need to be made. He did not want to chair such a review.

8. The Secretary of State pointed out that Patten had specifically said that

implementation would have to take account of the security situation and operational
effectiveness. He was prepared to configure the review so that Constantine and his team
would not have to make value judgements. These would be taken by Ministers. As the
chairman of the review, Constantine could receive assessments of the security context and
the operational effectiveness of the new police service from HMIC and the Chief Constable.
He could then prepare his report on progress with the implementation of Patten and
incorporate these other reports into it. It would be hugely helpful if he would agree to this

approach. He was held in high esteem and trusted by both sides in Northern Ireland.

0. Constantine said he had considered the matter carefully and declined to take the
rale. He was not in a position to reach judgements on these issues. This was not what he

had agreed to do. We should look for someone else. The Secretary of State pressed again.

How could his team oversee the implementation of Patten without taking account of the
security context and police effectiveness? This would be oversight in the abstract and in a
vacuum. Constantine again very firmly declined the task. The Government’s objectives
were in conflict with what he believed he and his team would be able to achieve. The
magnitude of the proposed review and the range of issues the parties would want to raise
were a significant deterrent. He and his team could do a very positive service for the people
of Northern Ireland by fulfilling their terms of reference. The role he was now being invited
to undertake was beyond the skills and abilities which he and his team possessed. They

did not feel able to take on the review.

10. The Secretary of State reiterated that the context and consequences of the

implementation of Patten were integral to the oversight process. He outlined again his

approach to protecting Constantine and his team from having to take value judgements.
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Contantine reiterated that he had taken his assignment on the basis of specific terms of ‘

reference. In an effort to be helpful, he had agreed to extend his remit in a particular way
at the invitation of the two Governments. He was now being asked to be part of a review to
evaluate the security situation and the effectiveness of the new police service. He was not
prepared to be involved in this type of review. He did not want to cause disappointment to
the Secretary of State but was firm that he was not going to take this on. He had not been
consulted and feared that he could not hold his team together if they were asked to
undertake such a review. We should find someone else for the job. He was not prepared to
chair such a review. He had never had the detail of what we expected explained to him.

We could have saved ourselves much trouble if we had told him in July what was intended.

His answer would have been “no”.

11. The Secretary of State asked how Constantine’s team intended to oversee the

implementation process. Constantine replied that his review would consist of information
derived from the oversight process. He would not be evaluating or reaching judgements on
the basis of the information provided to him by the reporting bodies. That was a task for
the Policing Board and the Chief Constable. The review we envisaged was a step too far.

The Secretary of State asked whether this meant Constantine was not prepared to review

whether there was a need for amendments to the Police Act. He confirmed that this was
the case and said we should speak to Sean O’hUiginn, to whom he had explained the
constraints and limitations within which he was prepared to work. He apologised again for
any disappointment, but had he been consulted fully he would have made his position

clear.

12.  The Secretary of State asked officials to work through the issues with Constantine

and his team to see if it was possible to construct a way forward which would meet the
objectives of both sides. It was possible to envisage a process where the Oversight
Commissioner would conduct one part of a three-part review — with operational
effectiveness and the security situation assessed by others. One way forward might be for
Constantine to recommend such a structure to the Secretary of State, who would readily
accept it. Constantine said he would want to look carefully at the language we proposed to

use before agreeing on such a way forward. William Fittall pointed out that we did not

need to tie down the details immediately. Nor did we need to say anything publicly. The

review was some way off and we needed to remain vague about its parameters for the
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Qoment. Constantine agreed and said he would be careful in any public references he

made to the review.

Signed

P G PRIESTLY
Principal Private Secretary
= (B) 28110

(L) 6462
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Chief of Staff to the Prime Minister
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NORTHERN IRELAND: MEETING WITH IRISH OFFICIALS

This morning’s breakfast meeting with Irish officials was attended by Tim Dalton,
Brendan Scannell, Michael Collins, Martin Mansergh and the Irish Ambassador; you, Bill
Jeffrey, Michael Tatham and | were present on the British side.

Tim Dalton said it remained the case that the IRA might yet do nothing. But Adams had
been very happy with yesterday’s meetings with the Prime Minister and with Bill
Jeffrey. It was left that Adams would be trying to secure an act of decommissioning:
there would be further contact with Dalton this evening, at which it might be possible to
get a better fix on the [RA’s reaction.

In terms of timing, Dalton said there were two possibilities. First, an act before Sunday:
Adams had not absolutely ruled this out but it seemed very unlikely. Second, a strong
and positive report by de Chastelain before Sunday in which de Chastelain was able to
say that the IRA’s proposal was back on the table and that an event would follow in
short order. Adams continued to think that a suspension of any kind would make it
very difficult to follow through with an act of decommissioning: primarily, it appeared,
because he saw suspension as happening at the behest of unionists. Dalton had sought
to explain that it was primarily driven by legal issues.

Dalton also said that whatever de Chastelain was able eventually to say about an act of
decommissioning needed to be stronger. Without necessarily giving quantities, he
needed to be able to give a strong impression that he was not talking about a few rifles
but was, for example, talking about sufficient quantity of weapons to mount a 1970s
style terrorist campaign for several years. Dalton said that he understood that de
Chastelain had told the IRA what quantity of weapons he considered to be needed, and
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the IRA had indicated that this was not impossible. Bill Jeffrey said that the other
critical issue for unionists was the visibility of the method of decommissioning.

You said that the critical thing was for Adams to see Trimble and convince him that the
IRA was going to decommission. The Prime Minister was prepared to try and persuade
Trimble tomorrow to take such an approach seriously. But Trimble would need certainty
that the IRA would decommission, and certainty about the timing, which should be no
later than Wednesday, or just possibly Thursday, of next week. The Prime Minister had
also told Adams that any act of decommissioning needed to be part of a process, and
not presented as a simple one-off gesture. In the wake of Colombia and other events,
some accompanying statement of intent was also needed: if a straightforward “war is
over” statement was not achievable, then something along the lines of “the war is over
once the Good Friday Agreement is implemented in full” would provide some
reassurance that the IRA was not insisting on a united Ireland before they wound down.
Adams had suggested that he could possibly see his way to such a statement.

You said that we also needed to be certain of the legal position. We would be trying to
clarify this further, but it seemed that we could stumble on for a few days beyond
Sunday without calling elections cr suspending the Assembly, on the basis that we
were undertaking a round of consultations. If an act of decommissioning then happened
and a successful election of the First and Deputy First Minister then occurred, we were
reasonably confident that the courts would not step in then to order Assembly elections.
The more difficult problem was if the IRA did not deliver on any promise, or what the
IRA delivered fell short of what Trimble required. The risk then was that we were
caught in a legal trap, in which we either had to call elections or risk a successful court
challenge ordering us to call elections.

Bill Jeffrey said that this was why, if an act of decommissioning could not be
accomplished by Sunday, we preferred a short 24 hour suspension as a pragmatic way
forward. This was not what unionists wanted: they wanted an indefinite suspension.

In any case, there was nothing magic about elections in this situation: the Good Friday
Agreement no more sanctioned elections than it sanctioned suspension. The trouble
would be convincing Trimble, in the wake of his party’s difficulties over policing and
with his concerns about the imminent criminal justice review, to give any room to an
approach from Adams. He would be bound to respond that whatever the IRA have
planned to do in August, more was now required. At any stage, by pulling his Ministers
out, he could force us into indefinite suspension. There was a risk that Trimble would

be so gloomy that Adams would conclude it was not worth it.

You asked what would happen if the IRA did nothing. Martin Mansergh said the
Taoiseach did not want elections: somehow we should get a further period of time in
order to keep the pressure up on Sinn Féin. Tim Dalton said he saw little option but an
indefinite suspension: tactically, the best position to be in with Sinn Féin would be to
say that they could have a few more days but if then nothing happened, there would be
indefinite suspension. Mansergh noted that the Irish Government would have to enter a
de jure reservation on suspension.
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You said that the Prime Minister had been attracted to a review undertaken by President
Clinton, but unionists were adamantly opposed. Tim Dalton suggested that the first
approach should be an internal review between the two Governments. You pcinted out
that much of the burden of this would fall to the Secretary of State and Cowen because
the Prime Minister was likely to be otherwise engaged for the next three weeks or so
after the end of this week.

There was agreement that tomorrow’s meeting between the Prime Minister and the
Taoiseach should focus on the current prospects and what to do if the IRA did not come
forward with decommissioning. There was a prospect of a further meeting in the
margins of Friday’s Brussels Summit and contact in the meantime between the
Secretary of State and Brian Cowen
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THE PRIME MINISTER 17 September 2001

b .

I heard today of your decision to retire as leader of the SDLP.

We have shared much since 1997 and without your sincerity, courage and
leadership we would not be where we are today. There is no more noble
motivation in politics than the selfless pursuit of peace and there are few who rise
to that challenge and succeed, but you did, and for that you are one of the

greatest peacemakers of our time.

Today, despite our continuing efforts to cement the peace process we must
not forget how far we have travelled. Many people are alive who would not have
been had you not grasped the nettle of violence and murder that dominated
Northern Ireland society. Too many took the status quo for granted - you did
not. I remember vividly the harsh criticisms you first endured and the risks you
took to engage the men of violence in dialogue. While many faltered you did

not. That took a degree of courage rarely seen in politics.

John, today I would like to say thank you for more than a generation of

political leadership, much of it in the face of adversity. I would also like to say

thank you to Pat, who I know has been a tower of strength to you in all that you




have had to face. I am glad that you will remain in Westminster and in the

European Parliament and that you will continue to serve the people of Northern

Ireland, the cause of peace and be a voice of reason on Europe.

Mr John Hume MP
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John Hume resigned as leader of the SDLP today. He has led the Party since
1979,

The Secretary of State has both written to Mr Hume and issued a public
statement. However, given his stature and contribution to political life, it would

also be appropriate for the Prime Minister to write personally.

SARAH TODD
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John Hume Esq MP MEP
6 West End Park
LONDONDERRY
BT48 9JF
September 2001

I learned with sadness today of your decision to retire as leader of the SDLP. We
have been through much together since 1997 and I am immensely grateful to you
for the way in which you have led constitutional nationalism towards the future

encapsulated in the Good Friday Agreement.

There will be other days to laud your overall contribution to politics, but as one

party leader to another, I have marvelled at your ability to lead your colleagues

and the broader nationalist community through the years of unremitting

challenge since you became leader in 1979.

I am delighted that you have decided to remain active at Westminster and as an
MEP. You have much left to contribute on the national and international stages

and I look forward to working with you in the years to come.

S~
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LUNCH WITH ADRIAN O’NEILL, 17 SEPTEMBER

1. I had lunch today with Adrian O’Neill, who has taken over from Ray Bassett
in Anglo-Irish Division. O’Neill was previously responsible for dealing with
the North/South institutions and has had past postings in Madrid, Boston and
Washington (where he was press secretary).

2. O’Neill had not received a detailed read-out of this moming’s meeting
between Brian Cowen and Sinn Fein(led by Gerry Kelly) on policing. When he
had asked Brendan Scannell whether the meeting had gone well, however, the
latter had rolled his eyes and said “no”.

3. On the options post — 23 September, O’Neill said suspension of the
institutions for a lengthy period, with a review, would be constitutionally very
difficult for the Irish Government. The Attorney General had advised that any
Irish “collusion” in such a suspension could be open to constitutional challenge.
O’Neill accepted that another one-day suspension would have diminished
credibility. He nonetheless suggested that the best option might be a one day
suspension, followed by restoration of the institutions with the prospect of
elections being held in the long term e.g. around March 2002 (with the Order in
Council setting the precise date only being moved in the run up to that period).

4, I said it was hard to see what incentive that would produce for Sinn Fein and
the IRA to deliver on decommissioning. O’Neill(depressingly) said that it
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would buy time to create the context in which decommissioning could happen.
He also said the prospect of elections would create an incentive for those parties
who wished to avoid them to “adjust their positions in order to reach
accommodations”. When I commented that there seemed to be zero chance of
the UUP agreeing to continue in the Executive in the run up to elections in
March 2001, O’Neill said they might prefer this to elections in another six
weeks time. I also asked whether March 2001 was being suggested in the hope
that the IRA would decommission in order to enhance their election prospects in
the south. O’Neill said that was not the case, and (like Martin Mansergh)
thought that Sinn Fein had little interest in entering a coalition government in
Dublin following the next election. He believed that Martin McGuinness and
Gerry Adams, particularly following last week’s events, saw the need for
decommissioning to take place. The difficulty (as with policing) remained in
persuading others within their sphere of influence.

5. Finally, O’Neill commented wryly that Hume had quite deliberately
announced his intention to step down without Mallon being present. Hume’s
clearly preferred successor was Mark Durkan. Nonetheless O’Neill believed it
would be best if Mallon took over the SDLP leadership in the short-term, given
his strong nationalist credentials. These were particularly important at a time
when the SDLP was struggling to convince the nationalist community that its
decision on policing had been right. Feed-back from public meetings suggested

that Sinn Fein was getting by far the better of the debate.

John Rankin
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MEETING WITH DAVID TRIMBLE AND REV IAN PAISLEY, 14 SEPTEMBER

Summary

» Trimble seeking to use Paisley to protect himself by ensuring UUP and DUP

nominate to Policing Board at same time.

Assurances provided on 12 month review; composition of Policing Board;
manpower, resources and funding; Police Ombudsman and Special Branch.

Secretary of State to confirm in writing.

Both parties agree to consider written response from Secretary of State overnight.

Paisley suggests further meeting might be necessary.
Detail
The Secretary of State met with David Trimble and the Rev Ian Paisley, who were
accompanied by David McNarry and lan Paisley Jnr, yesterday afternoon in his office in the
Palace of Westminster to discuss policing issues. William Fittall, Robin Masefield and

Denis Godfrey were also present. The meeting was friendly and businesslike throughout.

2. By way of introduction, the Secretary of State explained his intention to launch the

nomination process for the Policing Board the following day. He therefore hoped to be able

to provide Trimble and Paisley with a response later that evening on the various issues they

intended to raise. Paisley said the two parties would need an opportunity to come back to
the Secretary of State. Trimble said they could if necessary jump up and down’ the

following morning.
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12 Month Review

3. Trimble sought reassurance that the review would be able to examine the
effectiveness of the new policing arrangements and that Patten would not be considered

‘holy writ’. He also wanted HMIC to play a formal role in the review. Paisley asked for a

guarantee that Policing Board members could raise any issues they wished as part of the

review. Their hands should not be tied by virtue of their membership of the Board.

4. The Secretary of State pointed out that Patten had assumed peaceful conditions.

The review would therefore have to take account of the environment in which the police
were operating. Operational effectiveness would be a central aspect of the review and the
Policing Board would be free to offer views. Trimble said the Oversight Commissioner
might adopt a narrow approach, focussed on implementation of Patten. We should
therefore include a role for HMIC and set the review within broad parameters. Paisley said

he wanted the Secretary of State’s assurances in writing.

Policing Board and DPPs

5. Trimble sought assurance that, in the event of suspension, UUP and DUP nominees

would be appointed to a direct rule Policing Board. The Secretary of State gave the
assurance. Trimble said they were being asked to nominate in ignorance of the
independent appointees and could therefore end up on a Board with whose composition
they were unhappy. The Board as a whole needed to have a unionist majority. Paisley said

the chairman must also be a unionist. The Secretary of State pointed out that he was

required by statute to ensure that the Board was broadly representative of the community.
If the SDLP nominated, but Sinn Fein did not, he would need to compensate for nationalist
under-representation by appointing more nationalist independents. He could not offer a
guarantee on the chairmanship because he was required to apply the merit principle in
making appointments. He was prepared to consult party leaders on the chair and vice-

chairmanships.

6. Trimble said they had a number of concerns about DPPs. He sought clarification of

the functions and composition of the sub-groups of the Belfast DPP. The Secretary of State

said the sub-groups would have only consultative functions. Sinn Fein had pressed for
them to have the same functions as full DPPs. HMG had offered a review of their functions
at the 12 month point. But for the moment the sub groups’ functions remained as

provided in the Police Act. New legislation would be required to make any changes.
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Trimble asked whether HMG intended to repeal the disqualification on appointing

independents with terrorist convictions. The Secretary of State said this issue would be

considered as part of the planned review. The Government was prepared to legislate if such
change was found to be justified. But the terms of trade on this issue could change

following events in Columbia and the US.

Manpower and Resources

i/ Trimble drew attention to HMIC’s recent report and the concern that the new police

service might not be effective at the time of its creation. The Chief Constable had not been
prepared to hold officers back from taking severance and there was now a serious
manpower shortage. We were facing a situation where the FTR would be needed for some
time to come. He was therefore concerned about the commitment in the Implementation
Plan to a start date for phasing out the FTR and the absence of any means to control the

process once started. The Secretary of State said the police, with his support, were

planning to take more recruits each year than Patten had recommended - 500-600 per
annum against 370 envisaged by Patten. Increased civilianisation and withdrawal of the
police from courts work would help to offset manpower losses. In addition, our assessment

was that the losses might already have bottomed out.

8. Trimble asked whether the higher rate of recruitment was achievable using 50/50
recruitment. If we did not get sufficient Catholic applicants, large numbers of Protestants
would suffer discrimination. This was not sustainable: the police service would be tainted
if it was based on a breach of human rights. Travelling hopefully was understandable, but
we would need to adjust quickly if we did not achieve the necessary numbers. Paisley said
50/50 should have been structured to achieve 50% Protestants and 50% Catholics and
others. He also claimed we would lower standards if insufficient numbers of Catholics

applied.

9. In response, the Secretary of State reminded them that the key objective was to

achieve a more representative police service. The support of the SDLP and the Catholic
Church should ensure an increase in Catholic applications. We were also seeking to
prevent intimidation by republicans. We were in a new situation and should be able to
achieve the higher recruitment rate. The standards required for entry would not be
reduced. We were committed to phasing out the FTR and wanted to remove the
uncertainty about the future. FTR officers would be given reasonable notice of non-renewal

of their contracts. Once the new recruits came on stream, the Chief Constable would
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undertake a review of the security situation and his operational requirements, on the basis
of which a decision could be made on whether it was safe to begin the process of phasing
out the FTR. Trimble pressed on whether we could control the process once started. The

Secretary of State sought to provide reassurance on this. Paisley noted that the FTR was

the biggest policing issue for the Protestant community. The Secretary of State set out the

position on NI allowance and mark-time pay for FTR members recruited into the PSNI.

Trimble and Paisley welcomed these developments. Trimble asked about progress on

funding for the RUC Sports Association. Robin Masefield said the issue had been

discussed with the Association and we were waiting for them to come forward with a

detailed bid.

Special Branch

10. The Secretary of State explained that the support services would continue to be

available to Special Branch and briefed on the proposed reductions in . SB numbers.

Trimble and Paisley seemed content.

Police Ombudsman

11. Trimble claimed the Ombudsman was ‘interfering far too much’ and was hampering

police operations. The Secretary of State confirmed that protocols and guidance had been
agreed between the Ombudsman’s office and the RUC and would be developed further in
light of experience. He also confirmed that there were restrictions on individuals’ access to

information within the Ombudsman’s office.

12.  Paisley said a review of the Ombudsman’s office should be conducted 2 years after

its creation. Nuala O’Loan was far from being independent from politics. The Secretary of

State said he could not give a commitment to a review, but the issue could be raised as
part of the Constantine review. Trimble made some further comments which have been

recorded separately. The Secretary of State said he wanted to avoid getting to a position

where there was polarisation between the UUP, DUP and the Ombudsman.

Symbols

13. The Secretary of State said he had no room for manoeuvre on symbols. Trimble said

the recent draft guidance prepared by ACC Kinkaid on a neutral working environment was

very crude and would do huge damage. The Secretary of State said the Chief Constable, to
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whom he had spoken, did not intend or expect to preclude photographs of officers in RUC
uniform receiving honours and awards. Paisley grew heated as he focussed on the details
of the guidance and insisted on reading out a long passage. He concluded that the draft

guidance had ‘come out of the pit and should be put back there. It meant the word ‘RUC’
was to be consigned to oblivion’. The Secretary of State said on the face of it the draft

guidance looked neither sensible nor balanced. Trimble sought and was given confirmation

that PSNI officers would continue to be eligible for state honours and awards.

Funding

14. The Secretary of State said he had already provided additional expenditure for

policing. He was prepared to say in writing that overtime levels would be fully funded and
that HMG was committed to ensuring that the PSNI was provided with the necessary
funding. Paisley said he was content provided the Secretary of State’s written response

would bear this interpretation.

15. Drawing the meeting to a close, the Secretary of State undertook to write to Trimble

and Paisley later in the day. He also offered to let them have a paper (prepared by Robin
Masefield) setting out policing changes not taken forward and amendments made to the
Police Bill as a result of representations made by Unionists. Both asked to have it (Trimble

commented that it would be ‘fun to read’) and agreed to present it as their own work.

16. On the way out, Paisley expressed his gratitude to the Secretary of State for a useful
meeting. Trimble agreed. Before he left, McNarry said he hoped we appreciated how much

work Trimble had undertaken before and during the meeting to manage Paisley.

Signed

P G PRIESTLY
Principal Private Secretary
= (B) 28110

(L) 6462
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PS/Secretary of State (B&L) - O
PS/Ms Kennedy (B&L) - O
PS/Sir Joseph Pilling (B&L) - O
Mr Watkins - O

Mr Fittall - O

Miss O’Mara - O

Mr Stephens - O

Mr Maccabe - O

Mr Hannigan - O

Mr Lindsay - O

Mr Masefield - O

Mr Olszewski - O
Mr Tatham, No.10 - O
Sir Ivor Roberts, HMA Dublin - O
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From: Bill Jeffrey
Date: 15 September 2001

JONATHAN POWELL s S/S Northern Ireland
William Fittall
Michael Tatham

CONVERSATION WITH TIM DALTON

Dalton rang me this afternoon. He had had a reasonably good session with
Adams this morning, in which Adams had seemed “focused on getting things
back” and had accepted that “going half way would not be sufficient to rescue the
situation”. He and McGuinness would make a realistic assessment of the
prospect early next week, after his conversation with the Prime Minister. He had

asked to see Dalton again on Tuesday.

The fly in such ointment as this amounts to - surprise, surprise — was that Adams
did not think it could be done by next weekend, and had asked if some creative
thought could be given to the possibility of producing a few more weeks in which
something could happen. Dalton had said that there might be technical

difficulties about this, but he would talk to me.

I said that we didn’t know if Unionist patience would extend beyond next
weekend. For the idea to run at all we would need some certainty that the IRA

would act. We had never had this before. If Trimble could hang on in there, the

obvious option would be another one-day suspension followed by a more

deliberate stocktaking (perhaps involving an outsider) in the ensuing six weeks.
Dalton said that Adams was rather against the idea of a review by an outsider at

this stage. He (Dalton) had wondered about some kind of committee involving
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the governments and the parties, on the lines of the implementation group which

emerged from Weston Park.

I said that we would think about this. I added that, in the new situation, Trimble

might well need something more from the IRA than the mere act, as reported by

de Chastelain. A confidence-building statement about their peaceful intentions

might do. We certainly couldn’t have them out publicly discounting what they
had done. Dalton agreed. Adams had told him that, if the deed could be done,
his own mind was moving towards, as a next step, getting the IRA to fold their
tents, implying that the war was over. I said that I didn’t want to be ungracious,

but we had been tantalised with that prospect before.

Comment

As ever, there is a dilemma. The stuff about the folding of tents makes me
suspect that this is probably just another tease. Adams may well be trying to spin
things out to the point where the Unionists walk away. That being so, the Prime

. Minister may feel that if we don’t draw a line now we never will.

On the other hand, and Adams knows this, if he appears to be genuinely holding
out the prospect of an early act of decommissioning, the Taoiseach at least will
not want to close things down. As ever, it will depend on what is actually being
said. My own view is that the Prime Minister would need something close to a
guarantee, preferably one that could be shared with Trimble if only on Privy
Counsellor terms; and the confidence, from a separate discussion with Trimble,
that we would not be playing into Adams’ hands by provoking Unionist

resignations.
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As it happens, the sequence of meetings is quite well set up: Prime Minister

meeting with Adams on Monday; British and Irish officials on Tuesday morning;

Dalton and Adams later on Tuesday; breakfast with the Taoiseach on Wednesday
morning. If Adams gives the Prime Minister the same pitch as he gave Dalton,

the Prime Minister could:

urge him to move as quickly as possible;
be non-committal on creating more time, but say that he would need to be
absolutely sure that the IRA were going to move, and would like to be

able to take Trimble into his confidence; and

ask for a definitive answer from Adams before he meets the Taoiseach on

Wednesday morning.

BILL JEFFREY
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From: Jonathan Powell
Date: 14 September 2001

PRIME MINISTE cc: Michael Tatham
Tom Kelly

David Manning

NORTHERN IRELAND

I attach a note from Bill Jeffrey of his meeting with Gerry Adams today. I think
Adams will say very much the same things to you on Monday.

The combination of New York and Columbia give us an opportunity. This is not
a good time to be a terrorist chief. You need to tell Gerry Adams that they need
to put the modalities back on the table and undertake an act of decommissioning
by the end of next week if they are to have any chance of staying in the game.
The IRA have reached a moment of fundamental choice: they now have to put
down the armalite and proceed with only the ballot box if they are to be treated
as a legitimate political party. An act of decommissioning will not now be enough

by itself; they have to give a signal of intent either by saying the war is over or
by agreeing a process of decommissioning rather than a single act.

If they do not do the business we will either have to call elections or suspension
will be forced on us. In either case it leads to the same outcome: collapse of the
institutions. We will have a review but that will not change the terms of trade.
The unresolved issue will still be decommissioning. So if Adams and
McGuinness want to save the GFA they are going to have to deliver their
colleagues on decommissioning. Of course it will be hard to get consensus; but it
is essential that they are persuaded. The securocrats have always said that the
IRA would never decommission. It is up to him to prove them wrong.

You also need to put down a very firm marker of what will happen if they try a
short sharp shock.

Adams is very worried about his relationship with you, because of what I said to
him before the summer and because we have unusually been playing hard to get.
You need to tell him that you cannot invest more time in this process with all that
is going on in the world. This is their last chance.
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We are then meeting Irish officials on Tuesday; you have breakfast with Bertie
on Wednesday and lunch with Trimble the same day.

Trimble is being difficult about policing and criminal justice but will sign up for
the policing board by the end of the week. We need to be careful not to give him
so many concessions that we knock the SDLP off the other end of the seesaw.
The Irish are already getting nervous. We will give you separate briefing on the
detail.

The deadline is next weekend. The NIO has been toying with the idea of another
technical suspension to buy time. If we are totally pre-occupied with Afghanistan
that might make sense. But it will look pretty threadbare. There is no point in
calling elections, and the Irish are now opposed to them because of their fear of
what would happen to the SDLP. That leaves us with suspension. If we do it
ourselves, we give SF the excuse they want to fall back into their victim
complex. But Trimble has removed his threat of withdrawing his Ministers
because he wants us to suspend rather than taking the opprobrium himself. We
need to decide with Bertie on Wednesday which of these options we are going for
and who should head up the review. The Americans have proposed Jim Baker or
Richard Haas. Neither is likely to be acceptable to SF. I still like your idea of
Bill Clinton but it would be a hard sell to the Unionists (and the American
administration will have reservations). And they would reject the NIO idea of
Rolf Meyer.

W

JONATHAN POWELL
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From: Bill Jeffrey
Date: 15 September 2001

JONATHAN POWELL cc: S/S Northern Ireland
William Fittall
Michael Tatham

MEETING WITH GERRY ADAMS

1. I met Gerry Adams, at his request, for just over an hour at Clonard
Monastery yesterday afternoon. He had warned me that he just wanted to
brainstorm about the situation we were now in, and, true to form, there was
much furrowing of brows and talk of how he was still trying “to get his head

round” things, including the significance of Tuesday’s atrocities in the USA.

54 On Colombia, I got the same story as others, including Richard Haass,
have had. Neither Adams nor Martin McGuinness had known what was going
on. It was utter madness. He had never seen McGuinness so angry, and had
“nearly lost him”. He was not surprised Haass had been frosty. The drugs
connection was indefensible. He had postponed his visit to Cuba, but it was a

longstanding commitment and he would reinstate it some time.

3. Adams said that we were in a mess, and he wasn’t sure how to get out of
it. The Colombian episode had done great damage. People within the British
system were exploiting it rather than calming it down for the greater good. The
decision by the SDLP and the Irish Government to sign up for policing was a
serious mistake. He had just come from a meeting in which he had asked Sinn

Fein people to think about what would be required for the party to sign up for the

Policing Board, rather than just rehearsing what was wrong with our plan. The
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one day suspension had played badly, although he admitted that the Secretary of
State had presented it skilfully. People felt under threat in North Belfast. He

had to be able to persuade republicans that the process offered a viable way of

pursuing their objectives. There was a feeling that unionists didn’t want to make

progress, and that if the IRA made a big move it would be thrown back in their

faces.

4. I asked whether that was why the IRA hadn’t followed through in August;
or was it just too difficult for them? Adams implied it was a bit of both. We had
to remember there were different views within the IRA. The proposal put to

de Chastelain had been a major, difficult step for the IRA. Our response to the
de Chastelain report had been grudging. He had had to press even to get a
personal reaction from the Prime Minister. Trimble’s shifting the ground on to
the SDLP’s attitude to policing had been widely seen as just another precondition

- evidence that they weren’t really up for it.

5. I said that he surely couldn’t have been surprised by our response. We
accepted that agreeing modalities was a big thing for the IRA, and the Secretary
of State had said as much; but - in the context of the Weston Park deal - it was no

more than an intermediate step.

6. I also said that we had to get real about the relevance of the behaviour of
the IRA to the situation we were now in. The ceasefire had been a massive step,
and a great deal of discipline had been shown. But after more than a year of
devolution, and three years into the Agreement, it was simply unsustainable for
the IRA still to be as fully prepared as they were, still occasionally to be

murdering and attacking people, occasionally being detected acquiring arms and
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behaving as they had in Colombia, and doing nothing about decommissioning.
My reading of even moderate, pro-Agreement unionists was that they had run out

of ability to live with this and felt morally compromised. If the IRA didn’t now

follow through on the scheme agreed with de Chastelain by the end of next week,

and make some kind of statement to reassure people about their intentions, the

whole thing would be lost.

¥ Adams said that the process benefited greatly from Sinn Fein’s links with
the IRA and influence over them. The IRA had made the whole thing possible
with their cessation and in ways that would never become public. They might
well be ready to return to war if the process collapsed, but he doubted if after 7
years of ceasefire they were as well-prepared as all that. He and McGuinness
had agreed some days ago to approach the IRA and try to get the August position
back. I interjected that if it was just a question of getting the offer on modalities
back on the table, that would not be enough. The reaction would be “so what?”
Adams agreed and implied - without to my recollection saying so in terms - that

he would be working for an actual act.

8. Later in the conversation, Adams said (and I wasn’t taking notes)
something to the effect that he was unsure about how hard to push things with the
IRA. It wasn’t in the interests of the process for him to fall out with people and
be rebuffed. He would need advice on how we would react if the IRA moved,
and on unionists’ likely reaction. I said that, as in August, if the deal was done
on the basis agreed, he would not find us mealy-mouthed or unstinting. The
unionist position was harder to call. Although Trimble was in an even tighter
position than in August, I still thought a sufficiently dramatic and convincing act

would enable him to carry the day within the UUP. Adams should speak to
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Trimble himself. Adams said he intended to do so. A meeting yesterday had
had to be cancelled, but he would try to see him on Monday. His main concern
was not about our immediate reaction, but about our willingness to drive the
process forward, and stabilise the institutions. It was unacceptable for Trimble to
be able to act as he had over North/South. I said that we had the agreed form of
words on the stability of the institutions. I was sure Ministers would be willing
to respond to a sufficiently impressive move by the IRA by saying that it

provided a basis for moving forward with stable institutions.

9. When we were discussing Manhattan etc, I said - emphasising that I was
speaking personally - that I thought it had a bearing on the Prime Minister’s
involvement in the process. He was now likely to play a major part
internationally in the war against terrorism. He had stretched out to Sinn Fein
more than his predecessors and more than was easy in our political culture even
from a position of strength, in part because he believed in what Adams and
McGuinness were doing. I knew Adams had taken badly your message about the
Prime Minister’s feeling personally let down in August, but the fact was that he
had committed an extraordinary amount of time to Northern Ireland, he had
thought a deal was on in August and had been disappointed. If one added to that
the Colombian episode (which had dismayed the Prime Minister) and the wider

effects of Manhattan, my sense was that next week would be a turning point.

Adams absorbed this in the way that he does. He had not taken your message

badly. He had just been mystified by it. He had always been struck by the scale
of the Prime Minister’s commitment, and had warned his own people that they

could not expect it indefinitely.
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Comment

10. There was a lot of predictable stuff which I haven’t recorded about the
Government’s shortcomings, but a less hectoring tone than usual. Not
surprisingly, Adams was even more at pains than usual to point up the distinction
between Sinn Fein and the IRA. There was no hint of a demand for further
concessions, except perhaps in relation to guaranteeing the stability of the
institutions. At one point he said that he didn’t want to get into a negotiation.

Nor did he ask me what we intended to do next weekend.

11. He may be genuinely puzzled about what to do next, post-Colombia and
Manhattan - or he may just be spending these few days persuading us and the
Irish that he means well and is doing his best. He knows that Monday could be

decisive, and is not expecting to meet the Prime Minister again later next week.

12.  Tim Dalton is meeting Adams this morning, and will let me know how he
gets on. Subject to that and to the Secretary of State’s views, I think the Prime

Minister’s line on Monday should be to:

- heighten the sense that this is a moment of truth for the IRA, without
explicitly threatening political exclusion for Sinn Fein which would in my view
be counter-productive. Adams immediately accepted the argument that, under
cover of Manhattan, the time will never be better for a decisive move on

decommissioning;

- assure Adams that our response will be immediate and positive (including

a statement that the way is now clear for the institutions to operate as intended, in
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a stable manner) and that we will do our best with Trimble - this is the weakest

point, since Trimble is now almost dreading a move by the IRA;

- avoid committing himself on what will happen next weekend if nothing has

happened - this will have to be discussed with the Taoiseach later in the week.

BILL JEFFREY




CONFIDENTIAL - PERSONAL

From: Bill Jeffrey
Date: 15 September 2001

JONATHAN POWELL cc: S/S Northern Ireland
William Fittall
Michael Tatham

MEETING WITH GERRY ADAMS

I met Gerry Adams, at his request, for just over an hour at Clonard
Monastery yesterday afternoon. He had warned me that he just wanted to
brainstorm about the situation we were now in, and, true to form, there was
much furrowing of brows and talk of how he was still trying “to get his head

round” things, including the significance of Tuesday’s atrocities in the USA.

2. On Colombia, I got the same story as others, including Richard Haass,
have had. Neither Adams nor Martin McGuinness had known what was going
on. It was utter madness. He had never seen McGuinness so angry, and had
“nearly lost him”. He was not surprised Haass had been frosty. The drugs
connection was indefensible. He had postponed his visit to Cuba, but it was a

longstanding commitment and he would reinstate it some time.

., Adams said that we were in a mess, and he wasn’t sure how to get out of
it. The Colombian episode had done great damage. People within the British

system were exploiting it rather than calming it down for the greater good. The

decision by the SDLP and the Irish Government to sign up for policing was a

serious mistake. He had just come from a meeting in which he had asked Sinn
Fein people to think about what would be required for the party to sign up for the

Policing Board, rather than just rehearsing what was wrong with our plan. The
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one day suspension had played badly, although he admitted that the Secretary of
State had presented it skilfully. People felt under threat in North Belfast. He
had to be able to persuade republicans that the process offered a viable way of
pursuing their objectives. There was a feeling that unionists didn’t want to make
progress, and that if the IRA made a big move it would be thrown back in their

faces.

4. I asked whether that was why the IRA hadn’t followed through in August;
or was it just too difficult for them? Adams implied it was a bit of both. We had
to remember there were different views within the IRA. The proposal put to

de Chastelain had been a major, difficult step for the IRA. Our response to the
de Chastelain report had been grudging. He had had to press even to get a
personal reaction from the Prime Minister. Trimble’s shifting the ground on to
the SDLP’s attitude to policing had been widely seen as just another precondition

- evidence that they weren’t really up for it.

. & I said that he surely couldn’t have been surprised by our response. We
accepted that agreeing modalities was a big thing for the IRA, and the Secretary
of State had said as much; but - in the context of the Weston Park deal - it was no

more than an intermediate step.

6. I also said that we had to get real about the relevance of the behaviour of

the IRA to the situation we were now in. The ceasefire had been a massive step,

and a great deal of discipline had been shown. But after more than a year of
devolution, and three years into the Agreement, it was simply unsustainable for
the IRA still to be as fully prepared as they were, still occasionally to be

murdering and attacking people, occasionally being detected acquiring arms and
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behaving as they had in Colombia, and doing nothing about decommissioning.
My reading of even moderate, pro-Agreement unionists was that they had run out
of ability to live with this and felt morally compromised. If the IRA didn’t now
follow through on the scheme agreed with de Chastelain by the end of next week,
and make some kind of statement to reassure people about their intentions, the

whole thing would be lost.

i Adams said that the process benefited greatly from Sinn Fein’s links with
the IRA and influence over them. The IRA had made the whole thing possible
with their cessation and in ways that would never become public. They might
well be ready to return to war if the process collapsed, but he doubted if after 7
years of ceasefire they were as well-prepared as all that. He and McGuinness
had agreed some days ago to approach the IRA and try to get the August position
back. I interjected that if it was just a question of getting the offer on modalities
back on the table, that would not be enough. The reaction would be “so what?”
Adams agreed and implied - without to my recollection saying so in terms - that

he would be working for an actual act.

8. Later in the conversation, Adams said (and I wasn’t taking notes)
something to the effect that he was unsure about how hard to push things with the
IRA. It wasn’t in the interests of the process for him to fall out with people and
be rebuffed. He would need advice on how we would react if the IRA moved,
and on unionists’ likely reaction. I said that, as in August, if the deal was done
on the basis agreed, he would not find us mealy-mouthed or unstinting. The

unionist position was harder to call. Although Trimble was in an even tighter

position than in August, I still thought a sufficiently dramatic and convincing act

would enable him to carry the day within the UUP. Adams should speak to
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Trimble himself. Adams said he intended to do so. A meeting yesterday had
had to be cancelled, but he would try to see him on Monday. His main concern
was not about our immediate reaction, but about our willingness to drive the
process forward, and stabilise the institutions. It was unacceptable for Trimble to
be able to act as he had over North/South. I said that we had the agreed form of
words on the stability of the institutions. I was sure Ministers would be willing
to respond to a sufficiently impressive move by the IRA by saying that it

provided a basis for moving forward with stable institutions.

9. When we were discussing Manhattan etc, I said - emphasising that I was
speaking personally - that I thought it had a bearing on the Prime Minister’s
involvement in the process. He was now likely to play a major part
internationally in the war against terrorism. He had stretched out to Sinn Fein
more than his predecessors and more than was easy in our political culture even
from a position of strength, in part because he believed in what Adams and
McGuinness were doing. I knew Adams had taken badly your message about the
Prime Minister’s feeling personally let down in August, but the fact was that he
had committed an extraordinary amount of time to Northern Ireland, he had
thought a deal was on in August and had been disappointed. If one added to that
the Colombian episode (which had dismayed the Prime Minister) and the wider
effects of Manhattan, my sense was that next week would be a turning point.

Adams absorbed this in the way that he does. He had not taken your message

badly. He had just been mystified by it. He had always been struck by the scale

of the Prime Minister’s commitment, and had warned his own people that they

could not expect it indefinitely.
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Comment

10. There was a lot of predictable stuff which I haven’t recorded about the
Government’s shortcomings, but a less hectoring tone than usual. Not
surprisingly, Adams was even more at pains than usual to point up the distinction
between Sinn Fein and the IRA. There was no hint of a demand for further
concessions, except perhaps in relation to guaranteeing the stability of the
institutions. At one point he said that he didn’t want to get into a negotiation.

Nor did he ask me what we intended to do next weekend.

11. He may be genuinely puzzled about what to do next, post-Colombia and
Manhattan - or he may just be spending these few days persuading us and the
Irish that he means well and is doing his best. He knows that Monday could be

decisive, and is not expecting to meet the Prime Minister again later next week.

12.  Tim Dalton is meeting Adams this morning, and will let me know how he
gets on. Subject to that and to the Secretary of State’s views, I think the Prime

Minister’s line on Monday should be to:

- heighten the sense that this is a moment of truth for the IRA, without

explicitly threatening political exclusion for Sinn Fein which would in my view

be counter-productive. Adams immediately accepted the argument that, under

cover of Manhattan, the time will never be better for a decisive move on

decommissioning;

- assure Adams that our response will be immediate and positive (including

a statement that the way is now clear for the institutions to operate as intended, in
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a stable manner) and that we will do our best with Trimble - this is the weakest

point, since Trimble is now almost dreading a move by the IRA;

- avoid committing himself on what will happen next weekend if nothing has

happened - this will have to be discussed with the Taoiseach later in the week.

BILL JEFFREY




CONFIDENTIAL - PERSONAL

From: Bill Jeffrey
Date: 15 September 2001

JONATHAN POWELL cc: S/S Northern Ireland
William Fittall
Michael Tatham

CONVERSATION WITH TIM DALTON

Dalton rang me this afternoon. He had had a reasonably good session with
Adams this morning, in which Adams had seemed “focused on getting things
back” and had accepted that “going half way would not be sufficient to rescue the
situation”. He and McGuinness would make a realistic assessment of the
prospect early next week, after his conversation with the Prime Minister. He had

asked to see Dalton again on Tuesday.

The fly in such ointment as this amounts to — surprise, surprise - was that Adams
did not think it could be done by next weekend, and had asked if some creative
thought could be given to the possibility of producing a few more weeks in which
something could happen. Dalton had said that there might be technical

difficulties about this, but he would talk to me.

I said that we didn’t know if Unionist patience would extend beyond next
weekend. For the idea to run at all we would need some certainty that the IRA
would act. We had never had this before. If Trimble could hang on in there, the
obvious option would be another one-day suspension followed by a more
deliberate stocktaking (perhaps involving an outsider) in the ensuing six weeks.

Dalton said that Adams was rather against the idea of a review by an outsider at

this stage. He (Dalton) had wondered about some kind of committee involving




CONFIDENTIAL - PERSONAL

2

the governments and the parties, on the lines of the implementation group which

emerged from Weston Park.

I said that we would think about this. I added that, in the new situation, Trimble
might well need something more from the IRA than the mere act, as reported by
de Chastelain. A confidence-building statement about their peaceful intentions
might do. We certainly couldn’t have them out publicly discounting what they
had done. Dalton agreed. Adams had told him that, if the deed could be done,
his own mind was moving towards, as a next step, getting the IRA to fold their
tents, implying that the war was over. I said that I didn’t want to be ungracious,

but we had been tantalised with that prospect before.

Comment

As ever, there is a dilemma. The stuff about the folding of tents makes me
suspect that this is probably just another tease. Adams may well be trying to spin
things out to the point where the Unionists walk away. That being so, the Prime

Minister may feel that if we don’t draw a line now we never will.

On the other hand, and Adams knows this, if he appears to be genuinely holding
out the prospect of an early act of decommissioning, the Taoiseach at least will
not want to close things down. As ever, it will depend on what is actually being

said. My own view is that the Prime Minister would need something close to a

guarantee, preferably one that could be shared with Trimble if only on Privy

Counsellor terms; and the confidence, from a separate discussion with Trimble,
that we would not be playing into Adams’ hands by provoking Unionist

resignations.
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As it happens, the sequence of meetings is quite well set up: Prime Minister
meeting with Adams on Monday; British and Irish officials on Tuesday morning;

Dalton and Adams later on Tuesday; breakfast with the Taoiseach on Wednesday

morning. If Adams gives the Prime Minister the same pitch as he gave Dalton,

the Prime Minister could:
urge him to move as quickly as possible;
be non-committal on creating more time, but say that he would need to be
absolutely sure that the IRA were going to move, and would like to be

able to take Trimble into his confidence; and

ask for a definitive answer from Adams before he meets the Taoiseach on

Wednesday morning.

BILL JEFFREY




The Rt. Hon. The Lord Williams of Mostyn QC

The Leader of the House of Lords
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Jonathan Powell
Number 10 Downing St
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NORTHERN IRELAND ISSUES IN THE LORDS

| am writing to suggest that | take over responsibility for Northern Ireland
issues in the Lords. Charlie Falconer has told me that his responsibilities at
DTLR, and particularly his travel commitments, will make it difficult for
him to continue to carry out the Northern Ireland role. As you know | have
performed this role in the past and being in the House most afternoons as
Leader | believe that | am best placed to take this on. | would be grateful

if you could confirm that the Prime Minister is content with this
| have also written to John Reid alerting him to this suggestion.

| am copying this to Sir Richard Wilson.
% M/
7 |
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10 DOWNING STREET
LONDON SW1A 2AA

From the Private Secretary 13 September 2001

Dear Paul

MEETING WITH DAVID TRIMBLE

David Trimble and David Campbell came into No 10 this morning for a
meeting with Jonathan Powell, Bill Jeffrey and me.

Policing

Trimble drew on a note which he subsequently handed over (Bill Jeffrey
took a copy). This was Trimble’s reworking of some of the ideas he had
discussed with Paisley (a copy had been sent to Paisley). Trimble asked us not to
disclose to Paisley that this position had been disclosed to the government in
advance of their meeting with the Secretary of State (although Paisley would be
aware in general terms that Trimble was preparing the ground with UK officials).

Trimble expanded on some of the points in his note. The assurances he
needed on the Policing Board were crucial. On appointments, he could accept a
private understanding but there would need to be public language on the
reappointment of party nominees in the event of suspension and on the need for
the composition of the Board to be representative of the population of Northern
Ireland as a whole. He emphasised the importance of the Full Time Reserve as
the only means the Chief Constable had to control numbers. Trimble referred
briefly to his demands on the Ombudsman and Special Branch (which he thought
should not be problematic) but weighed in most heavily on symbols. There was
a genuine point of substance about sovereignty here. Unionism could not cope
with an insensitive wipe-out on policing followed by a kick in the teeth on
criminal justice. The situation was so bad he had been forced into partnership
with Paisley. Trimble complained about one (unnamed) senior RUC officer who
was driving through changes on uniforms and displaying awards with excessive
zeal.
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Jonathan pointed out that there was an element of zero sum gamery at
work. We had finally managed to get the SDLP to take a brave step. They were
currently extremely apprehensive. We could not afford to lose them at the other
end. Trimble replied that as things stood the government was very close to
losing the UUP.

Trimble said that if he got the changes he needed, and we then triggered
the request for nominations, he would respond immediately by convening party
meetings. If absolutely necessary, he would take the decision on his own
responsibility. Bill emphasised that we were not looking to the UUP to state
their agreement to Patten. Trimble said his problem was people within his own
party who were using the issue as a stick to beat him with. They were arguing
that he should emulate the SDLP and hang tough for concessions. So something
on symbols would make a big difference.

Sinn Fein

Jonathan and Bill briefed that the Irish appeared to have been delivering
tough messages to Sinn Fein. Haass had reported that Adams and McGuinness
seemed to have understood the implications of the attacks in the US on
international tolerance of terrorism. It was still not easy to read Sinn Fein:
perhaps they were still uncertain themselves of the approach they should be
taking. Trimble commented that Sinn Fein had overplayed their hand. Any
limited willingness on the part of moderate unionists to tolerate their presence
within the institutions had evaporated.

Suspension

Trimble said he looked to us to suspend at the end of next week (barring
unexpected progress). He would only force the issue himself if he thought HMG
would be too gutless to suspend. He thought that any review need not be long
but would need to change the architecture of the institutions, moving away from
D’Hondt. The Government would need to be in the front rank to carry along the
SDLP. Jonathan and Bill drew attention to the problems suspension would raise
with the Irish and the slim prospects of the SDLP going along with the kind of
fallbacks Trimble had in mind. Jonathan said the review should not involve new
negotiations. We had set out our bottom lines at Weston Park. One option
would be to get a major figure to come in quickly and call it. Trimble said it was
important for the Prime Minister to deliver on his undertaking to point the finger
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at Sinn Fein. He should start doing this during the course of next week, rather
than waiting till the moment of suspension.

North Belfast

Trimble talked a bit about the background to recent events. Hardliners on
each side had thwarted attempts at mediation. Republicans had been trying to stir
things up at several interfaces over the summer. In the Ardoyne they had run
into some of Adair’s people spoiling for a fight. Things were calming down now
but the end result was likely to be a tense impasse rather than a settlement of the
underlying issues. Trimble added that similar tensions could easily erupt in a
number of other areas.

Jonathan concluded that the Prime Minister would need to see the
Taoiseach and Trimble during the course of next week (we have since arranged a
working breakfast with the Taoiseach at 0900 on 19 September).

Yours ever

STAT

MICHAEL TATHAM

Paul Priestly
NIO
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Paolicing
“Short term attainables” — What we might ask for
12 Sept. 2001

The Review

To be more than just a review of whetber all of Patten has been
implemented. It must also be a review of how it has worked in practice, of
whether we in fact have an effective Police Force. We should have
suarantees of consultation on format well in advance of commencement, of
a clear role for us in the Review. The participation of HMIC should also be
built in.

Police Board

We need a guarantee that if we nominate that the Secretary of State will
reappoint our nominees in the event of suspension, that such appointees will
so far as possible be treated as our nominees. Also need assurance that it is
accepted that a Board cannot be representative of the people of Northern
freland as a whole if it does not have a unionist majority. We must also have
a unnonist chairman.

Numbers and Resources

Because of the way the early retirement scheme is working in practice the
Chief Constable has lost control of RUC strength levels, except with regard
to the full time Reserve. The Fundamental Review envisaged three
scenarios. The third, an entirely peaceful, normal environment posited a
strength level of 7,500. In terms of regulars, we are already below that level,
while the situation in the country is at about scenario one and a half. This
would require a force level between eleven and twelve thousand.

Merely postponing a decision in the reserve until next March does not meet
HMIC’s requirement that the force effectively communicates its intentions
to the reserve. We need a mechanism to set the force level needed by the
facts on the ground over each of the next fcw years and then a commitment

to retain sufficient reservists and provide the necessary resources to maintain
that level.

Has the Chief Constable got a profile of when the reserve contracts fall in?

We also need commitments on fair treatment for reservists, on severance,
pensions and alternative employment.
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Ombudsman

Has the Ombudsman developed protocals with the police to ensure that
complaints to the Ombudsiman cannot be used to disrupt police operations
and enquiries?

Special Branch
We need clarity on the numbers in the support services and the continued
availability of those services to Special Branch.

Svymbaols

Symbals embody sovereigrty and the consent principle. Their removal are 2
denial of sovereignty and consent. Without them, policing will not be
acceptable to the unionist people. If the Secretary of State cannot act on flag
and badge, then we suggest a formal portrait of Her Majesty in the foyer of
each police station.

The draft “neutral working environment” directive must be revised. All
memonals must be preserved where they are as they are. Personal
memorabilia — records of awards and honours must also remain. Sensitive
: on old military memorabilia, may however be acceptable. This
draft directive risks undermining a host of carefully worked
yrises in businesses and industry throughout Northern Ireland.

THIS 1S A COPY. THE ORIGINAL 15
RETAINED UNDER SECTION 3 (4)
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT
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PS/Secretary of State
13 September 2001

See Copy Distribution List

TEETING WITH RICHARD HAASS, 12 ¢ EPTEMBER
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lard Haass, who was accompanied by Barbara

on and Eric Green, yesterday afternoon in the US Consulate in Belfast to hear
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ontacts with the political parties. Bill Jeffrey, Jonathan Stephens, Robert
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olicing, Adams and McGuinness had commented on the flaws in the
Implementation Plan. In response, Haass had said that Sinn Fein’s response was
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was a

“tantalising prospect”. On d

ccommissioning, Adams and McGuinness

acknowledged that it had been a mistake for the IRA to withdraw the agreement on

modalities.

Haass had told them they would have to do “modalities plus” and they had

indicated that they understood this but could not achieve it before 23 September. As such,

he had come away from the meeting fceliz

Haass said meeting the DUP was

proposals were fatally flawed but the DUP

g less pessimistic about the prospects for

“always a show”. Thev argued that the policing

ht still join the Policing Board. The DUP had
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doing anything to question the legitimacy
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result of terrorism than the US. He had been

meeting with the UUP, Trimble had been more
| Jeffrey noted that this was a bad sign). On
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n about the implementation timetable and

. on policing before they could participate on the

On decommissioning, Haass had told Trimble that his response to the IRA’s

He also warned the UUP against

of judgements reached by General de Chastelain.

It was not the military significance of decommissioning that mattered, but its political

significance.

clear that he would take action to prevent
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Executive. He had also made a pitch for

Criminal Justice Review.
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purpose of a review
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The Secretary of State emphasised that
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the UUP’s question abot

Trimble had expressed concern about the prospect of elections and made

them by withdrawing UUP Ministers from the

delaying publication of HMG’s response to the

& The Secretary of State briefed on recent developments and the options open to

instinct was that we were heading towards a
Haass acknowledged that it was

it the morality of having Sinn Fein in

ed a private army.
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1ssed on the purpose and mechanics of a review.

ve had not yet reached a settled policy and were
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ing a number of options. Haass showed some interest in the idea of a pre-review in

the form of a limited study to advise the two Governments, which could be completed

a six week period and which might then lead into an indefinite suspension and full

nthi 7
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review if a breakthrough could not be achieved.

Haass asked whether we had an analysis of the relationship between the IRA and

in which we would be prepared (o share with him. Bill Jeffrey agreed to take this

2 Finally, in response to a question from the Secretary of State, Haass said the US

was not out of bounds if we were looking for an independent chair for a review. He

ed that he was more inclined to the idea of a pre-review.
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FROM: PS/ SECRETARY OF STATE
12 September 2001

PS/Secretary of State (L&B)
pS/Sir Joseph pilling

Mr Fittall

Mr Stephens

Mr Tatham, NoO 10

Mr Jeffrey f‘ ’

F
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TIMING OF UUP OFFICERS’ MEETING

William Fittall (stuck at the airport, hence this minute on his behalf)
spoke to David Campbell this afternoon. Campbell confirmed that the
UUP Officers’ meeting would not now take place this Friday becausec of
the recall of Parliament. He and Trimble planned to discuss timing
with Jonathan pPowell at 9.30 tomorrow and would then reschedule

the Officers’ meeting.

RIRSTEN MOFARLANE

KIRSTEN MCFARLANE
EXT 6461
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10 DOWNING STREET
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From the Private Secretary 12 September 2001
Dear Paul

NORTHERN IRELAND: PRIME MINISTER'S PHONE CONVERSATION
WITH THE TAOISEACH

The Prime Minister and the Taoiseach spoke on the phone at lunchtime today,
primarily about the terrorist attacks in the US (recorded separately), but they also
touched on Northern Ireland.

The Taoiseach said that, in a terrible way, the attacks in the US might help the
process in Northern Ireland. The Taoiseach said he had met Sinn Fein yesterday,
before the news from America, and had said to them then that they would lose US
support if they backed terrorism. All the more so now.

The Taoiseach said he had questioned Adams and McGuinness hard about the
IRA’s withdrawal of its proposal for decommissioning. Adams and McGuinness had
claimed they had not known what the IRA were planning to do, and were both entirely
against the move. The Taoiseach said he had pressed them on this: were Adams and
McGuinness in charge? If not, who was? What were we dealing with here - a political
process or a military one? The Taoiseach said he had told Sinn Fein that he and others
had been really upset by what had happened. He could just about believe that Adams
and McGuinness themselves had not known what was planned; but he could not believe
that whoever had been talking to De Chastelain had not known (the Prime Minister said
this was a very good point). The Taoiseach said this had been met with absolute
silence.

I am copying this to Sir Ivor Roberts (Dublin).

Yours ever

AAM vJ(cMLQI}

ANNA WECHSBERG

Paul Priestly
NIO
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Mr Jeffrey - O

MEETING WITH JOHN HUME AND SEAMUS MALLON, 11 SEPTEMBER
The Secretary of State, Jane Kennedy and Des Browne met with John Hume and

Seamus Mallon in Castle Buildings yesterday afternoon for a stocktake on current issues.

William Fittall and Robin Masefield were also present.

Policing

2. The Secretary of State said the UUP and DUP had seized the opportunity to press for

concessions on policing as the cost of agreeing to participate on the Policing Board.
Trimble and Paisley, whom he had seen earlier in the day, had claimed that they needed to
be able to persuade their parties and supporters that it would be worthwhile to join the
Board. He had told them he could not change the Implementation Plan, but had explained
that the Board would be responsible for police finance, planning, manpower and resources
and could therefore have significant influence on the process of change. He also intended
to make a statement on policing which he hoped would be helpful to Trimble. Hume
commented that Trimble had recently met him privately and assured him that by

23 September, the UUP would nominate to the Board. The Secretary of State said he could

not wait much longer than the forthcoming weekend before inviting party leaders to

nominate.

North Belfast

3. The Secretary of State said he would continue to ensure that the police and Army

had the resources necessary to protect the schoolchildren and ensure they could get to
school. He also wanted to provide the Protestant residents with a vehicle through which
their grievances could be addressed and thereby remove the ostensible cause of the protest.

However, he was not trying to mediate between the two communities. The immediate
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issues needed to be addressed by local dialogue. Nevertheless, the NIO and the Executive

could play a role in addressing the wider concerns of the two communities.

4. Mallon said there was a need to define the issues and the communities concerned.
There were problems of loyalist and republican paramilitaries manipulating the residents

and parents, respectively. There were also fault lines within the Executive. He had come

out of an Executive meeting about North Belfast feeling very depressed. There needed to be

a planned and co-ordinated approach to addressing the problems of North Belfast.

David Trimble had been prepared to endorse such an approach, but some of the most
relevant Ministers- including Maurice Morrow and Gregory Campbell — were not prepared to
work collectively with their colleagues. The FM/DFM had no powers to require them
implement any plan developed by the Executive as a whole. This issue needed to be
addressed. He was confident the Executive could identify the key problems and devise a
coherent plan for tackling them. This would undoubtedly focus on the regeneration of
North Belfast. Girdwood Barracks and Crumlin Road prison could serve as the fulcrum for

such regeneration.

5. Des Browne said he suspected the DUP were not serious about finding a solution
along these lines. They were presenting the issue as essentially a security problem and
wanted to extend peace walls as a means of maintaining Protestant territory. He agreed

that a wider approach along the lines suggested by Seamus Mallon was necessary.

5 Seamus Mallon reiterated that the Executive needed to grip the issue. They should

be able to generate a plan and find the necessary resources, but were likely to be thwarted
when certain Ministers refused to co-operate. He expressed anger that the Executive was
considering spending £60-70m to redevelop the Ulster Canal when North Belfast was
“staring them in the face”. The canal project would happen over his dead body. The
FM/DFM would need the Secretary of State’s help to get any agreed plan pushed through

and implemented.

Peace Process

T The Secretary of State said there were no indications that the Provisionals were

prepared to move on decommissioning. As such, there was no way to get the Executive up

and running on a proper basis. We were therefore heading for another crunch. The
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options appeared to be elections, suspension of devolution or another one day suspension,

but the later would be difficult to do again unless it led to a fundamental review under the

GFA. Did the SDLP have any views?

8. John Hume said the SDLP did not want elections. Their hope of achieving elections
had been the reason why republicans refused to move on decommissioning. At the last
election, there had been a huge problem of voting fraud in West Tyrone, Fermanagh and
South Tyrone and mid-Ulster. In terms of votes cast, the SDLP had achieved roughly the
same number of votes as in earlier elections, but the Sinn Fein vote had increased. This

had been largely due to malpractice and needed to be tackled.

9. Des Browne said there was a problem with the quality of staff at Polling Stations
which needed to addressed if the issue of personation was to be tackled. However, the
more significant problems were multiple registration and abuse of postal votes. He would

be happy to meet the SDLP to discuss these issues.

10. Mallon took a different view from Hume. He had no real fear of elections. The SDLP
would probably lose one or two seats and there was a risk that Sinn Fein might come first
in terms of votes on the nationalist side. He believed a further one day suspension would
not be credible. There was a “cosiness” in the Assembly and the Executive about the

future. Local politicians were not being brought face to face with political realities.

11. The Secretary of State agreed that another one day suspension lacked credibility.

We needed to acknowledge that the fundamental problem was unionist unwillingness to
work with Sinn Fein because they did not trust republican intentions. Colombia had
reinforced their fears. This pointed towards the need for a fundamental review under the
GFA. Mallon expressed scepticism about the merits of a review. He reiterated that the
Executive and the Assembly were sanguine about the future and foresaw another one day
suspension. He believed we were at the point where the two Governments should provide
one final chance to make progress after which we should close up shop. Hume said the
two Governments needed to get all of the parties round the table to sort out the current

difficulties. The Secretary of State pressed Mallon for his proposals on how best to make

progress, but was given no coherent reply.
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12. Hume and Mallon both commented that Sinn Fein had done nothing to help make

progress. Mallon said the parties to the Agreement had created a “moral quagmire” for the

greater good. The two Governments and the other parties were having to swim in the

quagmire whilst Sinn Fein “poked their finger in our eyes”.

13 Finally, Seamus Mallon asked whether there was any truth in the rumour he had

heard that the UUP intended to pull their Ministers out of the Executive if the DUP
achieved the 30 signatures necessary for their Sinn Fein exclusion motion. The Secretary

of State said we had not heard this suggestion before.

Signed

P G PRIESTLY
Principal Private Secretary
= (B) 28110

(L) 6462

PS/Secretary of State (B&L) - O
PS/Ms Kennedy (B&L) - O
PS/Mr Browne (B&L) - O
PS/Sir Joseph Pilling (B&L) - O
Mr Watkins — O

Mr Fittall - O

Mr Stephens — O

Miss O’'Mara - O

Mr Leach - O

Mr Maccabe — O

Mr Hannigan - O

Mr Crawford - O

Mr Masefield - O

Mr Waterworth — O

Mr Tatham, No.10 - E
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HM Ambassador
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THE MOGD IN DUBLIN

| agree largely with the analysis in your letter of 3 September to the Secretary of State,
subject to two points — which | emphasise are mora in the nature of thoughts provoked
by an interesting letter than points of disagreement.

2. As you say. there has been a very distinct shift in attitudes towards Sinn Féin in
Cusiin in recent weeks. The combination of frustration at the withdrawal of the IRA
offer on weapons and the events in Colombia has strained patience more than | can
remermber in my own time here. The robust line the Irish Government are taking on Sinn
Fein efforts to exploit the situation in the Ardoyne is a welcome sign. You zre better
piaced than me to judge, but | am sure you are also right about the mood in the wider
potitical community.

3. My only word of caution is that I'm not sure that it would take much to swing
things back. The Irish desperately want Sinn Féin involved. They are a long way from
contemplating any form of institutional arrangement which excluded them. Although
they are at present persuaded that Trimble cannot carry on without significant

movement on weapons, in their hearts they regard decommissioning as a dangerous
distraction. If, for example, Sinn Féin now signed up for the Policing Board, their
instinct would be to hail it as an histeric breakthrough, and their attitude towards Sinn

Fein would become noticeably warmer -

My second point is that, while it must be in our interests for Sinn Féin to feel the
heat, and not to be shielded by an over indulgent Irish Government, it is obviously not in
our interests to corner or isolate them so comprehensively as to drive them away, rather
than keep them engaged and persuade them that they have to give more ground.
Speaking for myself, | still share — th ugh not perhaps as unquestioningly - the basic
wrish analysis that ths process will be immeasurably stronger if Sinn Féin are in than if
they are not. This is partly, but - cortrary to what Sinn Féin themselves might think -

' no means wholly a point about the ceasefire. As a consequence of my first point,
Ne may not have much to fear on this score, and for all practical purposes it is better
r us to keep the Irish as they are2 now for as long as possible, because they zare the
ones most likely to influence Sinn Féin's behaviour. | merely make the point that it is
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CONVERSATION WITH DAVID McNARRY

As the Secretary of State already knows, after David Trimble had gone on

Friday, | gleaned a little more about his position from David McNarry.

2. McNarry was insistent that, to have any chance of carrying the party

on policing, Trimble needed something substantial on criminal justice

symbols, including the retention of the Coat of Arms inside court rooms. |

said that wasn’t on. The most we could do was to see if the court
complex now being constructed in Belfast could be treated as an existing
building and have the Coat of Arms on the outside. If it would help
Trimble manage policing, we could also look at postponing the publication
of the criminal justice material until after this week. | also took McNarry

through the package on policing.

3. Although Trimble would not thank him for telling us (so please
protect), McNarry said that part of the problem was with the people he
had identified to nominate to the Policing Board. Some were now
unwilling to be nominated, because the mood in the party was now such
that they feared deselection if we let things run through to Assembly

elections.

£
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4. | said that there would be no elections if unionist Ministers resigned.
McNarry said there would be no resignations. “We won’t be walking

”

away and taking the blame.” Were we likely to take action ourselves to
suspend, or insist on elections? Jonathan Powell had told them that we
wanted to avoid elections. | said that | could not give a definitive answer
on that, but as he knew, Ministers’ position in August had been against
suspension unless unionist Ministers had walked. | had no reason to

suppose that that position had changed, but the matter would obviously

need to be discussed with Trimble in the next week or so.

[Bill Jeffrey]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank @& 6447
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CONVERSATION WITH TIM DALTON

I spoke to Tim Dalton yesterday evening, and got a read-out of the meeting he and
Dermot Gallagher had had with the Sinn Féin leadership (Adams, McGuinness and
Howell).

2.  The meeting had lasted for about 2 hours, much of which had been taken up

with discussion of Colombia. The Irish had said that their political leaders were very

disturbed about it. Adams and co. had claimed not to have known what was going on,

but the Irish had been unconvinced.

3. On the main issue, Dalton and Gallagher had outlined “four scenarios, plus a
fifth”. The four were:

indefinite suspension of the institutions on 23 September;,

another six weeks, as at present;

suspension for the purpose of a review (I am not sure myself how this differed

from the first option);

elections.
A B
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3.  The fifth scenario was to get back to the position early in August. The Irish
needed to know whether the deal then being discussed was still possible. If it was,

this would be by far the best outcome.

4.  Adams had accepted that in principle this was the best way. Colombia and the
events in the Ardoyne had made things more difficult, but he would talk to some

people and return to Dalton and Gallagher. Adams and McGuinness were due to meet

the Taoiseach today.

5. I asked whether the idea was that before the meeting with the Taoiseach, they
would have an answer to the question about whether the August deal was still do-able.
Dalton said that he did not know, but he thought we would be clearer before the end

of this week.

6. Adams had told Dalton in confidence that Sinn Féin had had a roundabout
approach from David Trimble for a meeting, through the unlikely medium of Cyril
Ramaphosa. (I am not sure how much significance to attach to this, but I would be
grateful if copy recipients could keep it to themselves, for fear of embarrassing
Trimble).

7. Ireported all this to the Secretary of State and Jonathan Powell orally later
yesterday evening. I will let you know if I hear anything about the Sinn Féin meeting

with the Taoiseach.

[Bll Geffres]

BILL JEFFREY
11 Millbank & 6447
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I was grateful for thc opportunity to brief you on the current situation In
Northern Ircland. I also had a meeting with John Reid on Friday
morning.  Following these I feel it is necessary to write to you
underlining our grave concerns on aspects of policing, and the impending
publication of government intentions regarding criminal justice.

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

I have to say that my chief concerns are not being addressed. In its
efforts to humiliate and offend unionism, the Government runs the very
serious risk of alienating myself, and my Party. The implications this
would have for the entire process in Northern Ireland are self-evident.

On policing, T identified to you the real concerns of HMIC on the likely
ineffectiveness of the police due to rapid downsizing in the present
climate. | will have further contact with the NIO this week. Itis essential
that a firm public statement appear as a matter of urgency assuring the
public on police numbers, resources and the RUC Reserve.

It is also essential that my Party is seen to gain some concession on
symbols. Iunderstand that the issue of the badge and flag, both of which
are highly sensitive, will be left in the first instance to the new Police
Board. I have however suggested, firstly, that a clear statement should
emerge from the Chief Constable or from the Northern Ireland Officc
clearly refuting suggestions and recent public comment that serving

Leader of the Party: The Right Honourable Davld Trimble, MP, MLA
Palron: The Right Honourable The Lord Molyneaux of Killead, KBE
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police officers will not be allowed to display plaques that have been
presented to them or photographs of themselves in RUC uniform
receiving awards or decorations. Secondly I want it made clear publicly
that every police station in Northern Ireland will be displaying a portrait
of the Head of State. This is entirely reasonable and consistent with
public practice in most countries throughout the world. These minor
concessions will go far in alleviating the problems my Party has.

With regard to the changes I have asked for in the Criminal Justice
Review legislation I welcome the inclusion of a date for the devolution of
policing and criminal justice functions to the Northern Ireland Assembly.
I must however repeat my disgust at the Northern Ireland Office’s
determination to offend and humiliate unionism on symbolic issues. It is
entirely unacceptable to the vast majority of people in Northern Ireland
that courtrooms in Northern Ireland are to be vandalised by the forced
removal of the Royal Coat of Arms. | must insist that this matter be
addressed urgently. An acceptable compromise would be to retain the
insignia in existing courtrooms, and on new court houses to provide for
the Coat of Arms to be on the exterior only and not inside court rooms. I
must emphasise that this is the bare minimum. I cannot emphasise how
strongly I, my Party, and the unionist community feel on this issue. We
did not give our consent to the Belfast Agreement, and strive so hard to
ensure that the principle of consent was recognised, to then have all
vestiges of our Britishness and UK sovereignty removed before our very
eyes

With regard to the wider political picture I hope to have a further

~ discussion with Jonathan Powell on Wednesday but would be grateful for
a private discussion with you in the very near future. The tactics that I
and you deploy over the coming weeks will be critical in ensuring a
successful outcome to the current difficulties.

I would be grateful for your urgent intervention in these matters which
cause me such concern.

dikis Lose

RT HON DAVID TRIMBLE MP, MLA
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SUMMARY

1. Shock and revulsion in the Soutn. Unionists in the dock again,
and incomprehension of the Northern psyche.

DETAIL

2. As in the UK, Irish television, radio and newspapers have

given headline coverage to the events in North Belfast this week.
irish peaple in the South, wearied by the antics of their Northern
neighbours over the many years of the troubles (the editor of the
highest circulation newspaper here once told us that a Northern
Ireland story an the front page guaranteed a dip in sales), have
been shocked by the barbaric scenes flashed across their
television screens and over the front pages. Seasoned reporters
were visibly shaken by what they had witnessed in the Ardoyne and
that added to the sense of disbelief.

3. Standard prejudices here about Unionists have, of course, been
reinforced. The distinction between mainstream Unionism and
Loyalist activity has been all too easily lost in the face of what

is inevitably seen as Protestant attacks against Catholics. And

as the new head of Anglo Irish Division in the DFA commented to me
on 6 September, the episode was perfectly timed for Sinn Fein,

who have been in serious hot water over their recent conduct in

the peace process, Colombian arrests et al.

4. But Irish interpretation is not as clear-cut as oné might
imagine. A substantial minority in this still deeply
family-orientated society have expressed Incomprehension at the
actions of catholic parents putting their children at risk by
running the gauntlet cf Loyalist varbal and physical attacks for
the sake of their principles, however well-founded. The debate has
even made its way onto the airwaves of the low quality but high
listenarship late night radio phone-ins which normally steer weil
clear of political issues. On one such programme, in spite of an
eloquent disposition from Anne Cadwallader, a well known
pro-Republican journalist speaking from Belfast, squarely placing
the biame on the Unianists, opinion among callers was almost
gvenly divided in apportioning blame. A number of people rang to
say that they could make no connection with and had no
understanding of the psyche of their northern cousins on either
side of the cultural divide.

5. The early return of the Northern Ireland Secretary from
holiday and his appeal to politicians to unite to end the savagery
of the school dispute has been widely welcomed.

COMMENT

6. Another particularly shocking chapter in the history of

Northern Ireland from an Irish perspective and a body blow for
maderate Unionism. But when the dust seftles, some may comé to
ses the events at Haly Cross as a reason (o redouble efforts to
find a way forward together.

ENDS
http://mo 10intranct/fcotclegrams/bodytext\asp?ID=98561 07/09/2001
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TELEPHONE CONVERSATION WITH MARTIN McGUINNESS, 7 SEPTEMBER

The Secretary of State took a telephone call from Martin McGuinness earlier this afternoon
about North Belfast.

2. McGuinness asked why he had not been invited to the meeting which the Secretary
of State had arranged with Executive Ministers earlier today. He wondered whether he had

not been invited because Maurice Morrow had refused to attend.

35 The Secretary of State explained that he was trying to provide an opportunity to get

the protestors off the hook by creating a process to enable them to raise their grievances
and thereby call off the protest. However, the responsibility for such a process should fall
properly to the Executive. He could play a facilitation role but the Executive should take
the lead. He had therefore asked Seamus Mallon and Sir Reg Empey to a meeting to

discuss the issue.

4. McGuinness said he had no concerns about the proposed meeting, but his
Permanent Secretary had been asked to attend by Gerry Loughran. In these
circumstances, he wondered whether it might be more appropriate for him to attend. The

Secretary of State said he had no knowledge of these developments. His intention was to

have a meeting with Sir Reg Empey and Denis Haughey, who would represent

Seamus Mallon. He simply wanted to avoid cutting across the Executive.

S. In response to a question from the Secretary of State, McGuinness acknowledged
that there was a real need for such a process and a growing appreciation within the
community in North Belfast of the need to address the problems which had arisen. He
believed the Secretary of State’s approach was sensible. His primary concern was the
education of the children and avoiding any extension of the protests to other schools. If

there were going to be political discussions involving the Executive, he would want to be
Y

N
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‘esent. But he was not making an issue if the intention was to have a meeting involving

only the FM/DFM.

6. The Secretary of State asked about the wider political situation. McGuinness said a

miracle was needed to save the GFA. The UUP had turned their face against the
implementation of the Agreement. The work which he and others had done with

de Chastelain to achieve movement on the decommissioning issue had been thrown back in
their faces. Incredible progress had been on offer. He hoped we understood that HMG had
lost the policing debate within the nationalist community. (The Secretary of State

commented: “We’ll see about that.”). A plan of action was needed to move the situation

forward and he hoped the NIO had one. The Secretary of State replied that we were waiting

on Sinn Fein. McGuinness said Sinn Fein had no new ideas.

Signed

P G PRIESTLY
Principal Private Secretary
= (B) 28110

(L) 6462

PS/Secretary of State (B&L) — O
PS/Ms Kennedy (B&L) - O
PS/Mr Browne (B&L) - O
PS/Sir Joseph Pilling (B&L) — O
Mr Watkins — O

Mr Alston — O

Mr Fittall - O

Mr Stephens — O

Mr Maccabe — O

Mr Crawford — O

Mrs Madden - O

Mr Waterworth — O

Mr Tatham, No.10 - O

Sir Ivor Roberts, HMA Dublin - O
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SUMMARY

1. Shock and revulsion in the South. Unionists in the dock again,
and incomprehension of the Northern psyche.

DETAIL

2. As in the UK, Irish television, radio and newspapers have

given headline coverage to the events in North Belfast this week.
Irish people in the South, wearied by the antics of their Northern
neighbours over the many years of the troubles (the editor of the
highest circulation newspaper here once told us that a Northern
Ireland story on the front page guaranteed a dip in sales), have
been shocked by the barbaric scenes flashed across their
television screens and over the front pages. Seasoned reporters
were visibly shaken by what they had witnessed in the Ardoyne and
that added to the sense of disbelief.

| 3. Standard prejudices here about Unionists have, of course, been
reinforced. The distinction between mainstream Unionism and
Loyalist activity has been all too easily lost in the face of what
is inevitably seen as Protestant attacks against Catholics. And
as the new head of Anglo Irish Division in the DFA commented to me

| on 6 September, the episode was perfectly timed for Sinn Fein,

| who have been in serious hot water over their recent conduct in

\ | the peace process, Colombian arrests et al.

4. But Irish interpretation is not as clear-cut as one might
imagine. A substantial minority in this still deeply
family-orientated society have expressed incomprehension at the
actions of catholic parents putting their children at risk by

running the gauntlet of Loyalist verbal and physical attacks for
the sake of their principles, however well-founded. The debate has
even made its way onto the airwaves of the low quality but high
listenership late night radio phone-ins which normally steer well
clear of political issues. On one such programme, in spite of an
eloquent disposition from Anne Cadwallader, a well known
pro-Republican journalist speaking from Belfast, squarely placing
the blame on the Unionists, opinion among callers was almost
evenly divided in apportioning blame. A number of people rang to
say that they could make no connection with and had no
understanding of the psyche of their northern cousins on either
side of the cultural divide.

5. The early return of the Northern Ireland Secretary from
holiday and his appeal to politicians to unite to end the savagery
of the school dispute has been widely welcomed.

COMMENT

6. Another particularly shocking chapter in the history of

Northern Ireland from an Irish perspective and a body blow for
moderate Unionism. But when the dust settles, some may come to
see the events at Holy Cross as a reason to redouble efforts to
find a way forward together.

ENDS
http://no10intranet/fcotelegrams/bodytext.asp?ID=98561 07/09/2001
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MARTIN MANSERGH: 6 SEPTEMBER

L.

I arranged to se¢ Martin Mansergh in Dublin today. On both sides, we
made it clear that we Were interested in a general mind clearing
discussion, came with no particular instructions and were not in any
sense committing Ministers by what we discussed.

_ Mansergh, like us, is not clear what Sinn Fein were about in the run up to

12 August. He dismissed the notion that they will never decommission.
He thought it unlikely that the [RA were put off from proceeding to an
act of decommissioning by the Unionist response (an explanation which
fell rather more in favour in the DFA earlier this morming) - it could not
have come as a surprise to them and they could have been in no doubt

.

that the two governments expected an act of decommissioning.

_ Instead, Mansergh was taken with two other possible explanations. The

first was that they wanted to appear reasonable and engaged in
negotiations, while actually seeing the best outcome as Assembly
elections. (Being Mansergh, he explained this by comparison with Bonar

Law’s approach to the 1912-14 home rule negotiations). I said I thought

there might well be something in this and myself was worried that talk of
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elections had actually given Sinn Fein a clear incentive 110t to
decommission, the one thing which would have rendered elections
unnecessary- Mansergh suggested ~ while emphasising that this was 2

personal view not d fficials — that the

governments might w ' ' i . that there
would be early Assembly elections, other than in the scenano where there

had been actual decommissioning and yet Trimble refused to stand for re-
election.

. The final explanation Mansergh offered was effectively that Adams and

McGuinness had been unable to persuade the Army Council to go as far
as an act of decommissioning at this stage. (This explanation seems to be
reflected in what the Taoiseach has said to the Prime Minister.) The IRA
had historically never rushed to play its significant cards. Adams and
McGuinness did not hold complete sway and there would have been
those who argued that they should see if they could get away without
playing the decommissioning card yet. 1 queried whether there was
really such a distinction between the IRA and Sinn Fen.

. On our current approach, Mansergh was clear that there should be 10

running after Sinn Fein and that there was little in reality to be put o the
table. There should be 1o renegotiation on policing, whether at Sinn Fein
or UUP behest. The danger now was that, just as Smn Fein had arguably
overplayed their hand in July/August, noW the UUP would up the anti
and let Sinn Fein off the hook. The aim of both of the governments OVeT
the coming weeks should be to keep all parties at “he sticking post”, i€
focus clearly on the issues of decommissioning and institutions.

). Realistically, though, Mansergh saw little prospect of movement before
23 September (although we agreed it was important that the governments

demonstrated there was not vacuum before then). We discussed the
options for 23 September: Mansergh was clearly not attracted at all by
elections: he had no confidence the nationalist electorate would actually
reward the SDLP for their move ofi policing. He favoured either a
further one day suspension (I cautioned that this device was perhaps
losing credibility) or a suspension forced by UUP Ministers leaving
office. Not surprisingly, he counselled against an indefinite suspension
introduced at our behest: it would be different if we were forced into it.
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| painted a bleak picture of the state of Unionist opinion, pointing 10 the
undermining of moderates DY Colombia, the emotion of the policing
debate and the activities of Donaldson and Burnside as presenting 2 very
difficult situation for Trimble to manage. He had told the Prime Minister
that he did not think a single act of decommissioning would any longer
allow him to be re-elected. We should not underestimate the growing
sense of Unionist al — nor indeed the impact of
Colombia and the events jeading up to 12 August on our own sense of
what Sinn Fein were about. Nevertheless, Trimble had not given up a

fight yet.

~ Mansergh revealed that there was some new energy

investment/development up for decision before the Executive just before
23 September — Empey was closely involved, as was Mark Durkan
because it was the North West. It affected Irish interests in Donegal and
the Irish Government Were trying to be supportive. It might provide 2
reason why Empey would be reluctant to se€ UUP Ministers drop out of
the Executive much before 23 September.

_ Finally, looking ahead to prospects for the Irish election, Mansergh was

confident it would not be called earlier than April 2002 (for the rather
obscure reason that the Taoiseach apparently prefers longer days for
street campaigning). He dismissed the notion that the TRA were intent
on timing any act of decommissioning for just before an Irish election:
this ascribed too much importance 1o the significance of Irish elections
and the whole process was simply not subject to that sort of micro time
management. He thought Fianna Fail might be down a seat or two, the
PDs up slightly, with the likeliest outcome being 2 continuation of the
current coalition, and the second best 2 Fianna Fail/Labour coalition.
The only uncertainty was that there remained a significant floating
protest vote, with no signs yet of any of the established parties looking
likely to pick it up. That might be Sinn Fein’s opportunity. But even if

Sinn Fein did much better than was widely expected, it was most unlikely
that they could, or would want to, form part of a governing coalition.
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SYLVIA HERMON ON DAVID TRIMBLE

Summary

Trimble tells Hermon he has lost the party.

Detail

Trimble at a low

Sylvia Hermon called me last night on her return from No.10. She
wanted to follow up on our discussion on Monday.

2. She had gone to the 1630 meeting on Monday with Trimble and
others in a pretty foul mood. For the first time in the 22 years she had
known him, Hermon had laid it on the line, no holds barred, about her
disappointment with his handling of the UUP Executive on Saturday.
He had taken everything she had said quietly and simply asked if she

would still accompany him to No.10.
3. Following yesterday's meeting with the PM Hermon had had a few
minutes alone with Trimble in Central Lobby when Campbell was called

away. She did not want to be disloyal but we needed to know how

CONFIDENTIAL AND PERSONAL
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down he was. Trimble had told her he had lost the party. Initially she
could not fathom why he was so desperate, but he went on to say that
he had lost not just Jim Nicholson MEP at the Officers' Meeting on
Friday but also Lord Rogan. She said that James Cooper, Trimble's key
admirer/supporter, had been neutralised by his appointment as
Chairman, while Martin Smyth was rampant and Rogan was looking
after himself. If Trimble could not control the officers he lost control of

the debate - as had happened on Saturday.

4. Lady Hermon referred back to Michael McGimpsey's weak
performance on policing and to a bad row between Empey and Trimble
over suspension. The circle of reliable supporters (of which she

remains a part) was shrinking.

Where now?

5. When | asked where Trimbie went from here she said she honestly
did not know. He certainly needed something to carry the party to
nominate to the Police Board. She was not interested in the

unattainable but did mention:

« Slowing down the reduction of the FTR to meet the Chief
Inspector's fears gbout a trough. A defective launch of the
PSNI was in no-one's interest and slowing down reduction of

the FTR was not incompatible with Patten.

The RUC Athletic Club served a wide range of current officers

and the broader RUC family. They had pushed ahead with pro-
Patten reform to the dismay of many. They had been hoping for
cash assistance from the Home Office on the basis of a circular.

No money had been forthcoming and they were beginning to

CONFIDENTIAL AND PERSONAL




HIO LLOMHDOH T

CONFIDENTIAL AND PERSONAL

suffer as numbers of policemen declined. A spontanecus
payment would have a quick trickle down impact beyond the

club.

She made no claim that either idea was a magic bullet.

5. On criminal justice the No.10 meeting had been disappointing.
The functions of the Chief Inspector of Criminal Justice seemed to
ignore the existence of the Police Ombudsman. She also hoped for at
least equal sensitivity as the Human Rights Commission had shown
yesterday in referring to the Belfast (Good Friday) Agreement. GFA

was anathema to unionists.

-
' o, "
Eba;md/

PETER WATERWORTH
@& Ext 27085
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Foreword and recommendation 256

If the devolved institutions are working effectively, the Government intend to devolve
responsibility for policing and justice functions, as set out in the Belfast Agreement.
We need first to take some major steps to implement the Criminal Justice Review and
to make some more progress on detailed implementation of the Patten report. A final
decision to devolve these functions can only be taken at the time taking account of
security and other relevant considerations. But the Government’s target is to
devolve policing and justice after the Assembly elections scheduled for May 2003.
Offiei : ' lanning to make this-feasible-if the

-~

Reconﬂcndaticm 263

Insert after segond sentence: “Clause 22 of the Bill intludes a list of organ'éations
the Inspector. The Goveriment is considering Whether thi

list could be added\to by including for exampl Police Ombudsman.’

BJ/MR/S.9.2001(1.30pm)
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f RECOMMENDATION 168 COMMUNITY RESTORATIVE JUSTICE SCHEMES

!
We belleve that Community restorative justice schemes can have a role to play in dealing with the
types of low-level crime that most commonly concerns local communities. However, we
recommend that community restorative justice schemes should:

*  receive referrals from a statutory criminal justice agency, rather than from within the
community, with the police being informed of all such referrals;
be accredited by, and subject to standards laid down by the Government in regpect of how
they deal with eriminal activity, covering such Issues as training of statf, human rights
protections, other que process ana proportionality Issues, and complaints mechanisms for

both victimg and offenders:
be subject to regular inspection by the Independsnt Criminal Justice Inspectorate which we

recommend in Chapter 15; and

have no role in determining the gulll or innocence of allegad offenders, and deal only with
those Individuals referred by a criminal justice agency who have indicated that they do not
wish to deny guilt and where there is prima facie evidence of guilt. [para. 9.98)

Accepted

Lead responsibility: NIO

Government agrees that community restorative justice schemes have a role to play in dealing
types of low level crime, but it also agrees with the Review's emphasis on the need to protect
the human rights of all who come into contact with such schemesg-.

id--The Gmrnont agreas fully with tho thw'a récommendalions

Sloareslpublic-accountabiby.

on_hew community resicrative justice schemes may exercise a role in relation 1o low level crime:

namely that they should only receive referrals from a statutory agencxt. with the police informed of

all referrals; they should be sccredited by and subject 16 standards (aid down by Govermment. they
nal Jugtice Inspectorate; and shoul

should be subject to reguiar inspection by the Cnm;
role in determining Quilt or innocence.
The Government locks forward to workin
assisun ing towards accreditation, However, schemes

i j hich do not atlain accreditation pose 8@ gerious
threat to the human rights of those involved and risk undemnining the rule of law. in order to
facilitata the move towards accreditation the NIO wiil draw up guidelings, developed in consultation
e — VT [OWRIDS accred A

with both statutory agencies and the existing community schemes . for the operation of the

schemes which would bring them into line with the Review’s recommendation.

Timescale: Ongoing
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RECOMMENDATION 288 TRANSFER OF PRISONERS

We recommend that consideration be given to facilitating the temporary transfer of prisoners
between Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland. (para. 17.49)

RECOMMENDATION 289 FORENSIC S8CIENCE DATABASES AND
INFORMATION EXCHANGES

Wa suggest that discussion of the development of relavant forensic sclence databeses and the
Scope for exchanges of information should take place under the struciuras for co-operation. [para.
17.54]

RECOMMENDATION 290 WIDENING ACCESS TO SERVICES

We recommend that the possibility of widening access to services such as foransic science and
pathology across jurisdictional boundaries be investigated. [pars. 17.52]

RECOMMENDATION 291 DANGEROUS OFFENDERS REGISTERS

With a view to sharing information between the autharities in the two jurisdictions, we recommend
that the possibillty of co-ordinating an approach 10 dangerous offander reglsters be given
consideration, (para, 17.53]

RECOMMENDATION 294 REPORTING RESTRICT(ONS

We recommend that there should be discugsion within the structures for co-operation on how
reciprocal arangements might be developed to ensure the effectiveness of reparting restrictions.
[para. 17.60)

Accepted in principle

Lead responsibility: NIO and Department of Justice (Republic of Ireland)

The Review called for @ group of policy makers from both bosher-lolond-and-tha-Republic-of
juriedictions to be set up to identify and advise on the opportunities for co-operation at
Government level and between agencles. Agreement has been reached between the two

T GOvemments 1o €s1ablish such 3 grou‘ﬁ,‘under the auspices of the Brilish-Irish Intergovernmental
Conference, with an agenda which will ifclude the areas noted in the recommendations.

This group will build on progress already being made. For example, current werking practices
between agencies in Northemn Ireland and the Republic assist in monitoring the movements of sex
offenders on both sides of the border. and statutory improvaments to the registration requirements
are being considered. Co-operation also takes place regularly between a variety of criminal justice
agencies, both at an operational leve! and to exchange information and best practice. Jaint
resqarch conferences have already been held on a number of subjects and more are planneg.
Victims' Isgues have also been addressed and consideration is being given to a joint approach to
claims for criminal injuriea compensation which have a cross-border dimension.

Foliowlng davolution of criminal justice it would be for the Northern ireland Assembly 10 consider
how to take forward co-operative amangements. The Belfaet A, resment allows new matters 10 be
t2ken forward by the North/South Ministerial Gounc) y agree ment in the Council and with thea
specific endorsement of the Northem Ireland Assem 1ly and the Oireachtas.

Timescale: Ongoing
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CONFIDENTIAL

FROM: PS/SECRETARY OF STATE (L)
4 September 2001

PS/Secretary of State (L&B)
PS/Sir Joseph Pilling (L&B)
Mr Watkins

Mr Alston

Mr Fitall

Mr Leach /,/
Mr Stephens U

Mr Powell, NdYO- —

<
Mr leffrey ﬁ DM

T\L(Q-S

-

PHONE CALL WITH JONATH AN POWELL

The Secretary of State had a conference \‘;;iJ \*’i‘h "onathap Powell this afternoon
ahead of the Prime Minister’s meetin th David Trimble tomorrow. You, Mr
Fittall, Mr Stephens and I were also nnected

2. I'he Secretary o of State said thai, within the next week, we wanted to be able to
say that we had fulfilled all our obligations under the Good Fu’*dv Agreement,
leaving Sinn Féin without excuse of decomnussioning. It would be worth the Prime

Minister explaining this to Trimble anc ?::.m:z out where he stood.

Policing

3, The Secretary of [ State said that Trimble needed to understand that we would
have (o seek nominations to the Policn x— Board next week. We were getting signals
that he wanted to move but party di ‘tﬂ titics were limiting his room to manoeuvre.

: Hlﬂdl. Powel] confirmed that 1} e Minister would make clear that
nominatio; ns 1o the Board would be sought carly next week. He did not think that
Trimble \,\pc« ted any concessions. The >ecretary of State said the point should be
madec , i Sinn Féin did not S1gn up to the Po.unv Boaul we wouldn’t use the
indepe m‘ ent membership to let republicans in through the back door.

Criminal Justice Review

4. ..x:-v_un of State ed that Trimble may press the Prime Minister for a
date for Lm devolution of justice lu f\,(i";‘zf, No date was specified in the criminal
Justice plan but Trimble had a letter from Peter Mande Ison, dated May 2000, which
committed the Government to nami 13 a date. You pointed out that this made any
pressure difficult to resist, The Prime Mimster could concede the form of words from

CONFIDENTIAL
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the negotiating brief during or after tomorrow ’s meeting. Mr Fittall said that it would
be worth discussing the precise terms wita Trimble, particularly on timing.

Parades Commission Review

The Secretary of State said the review of the Parades Commission was, like
OTRs, part of the Weston Park package but outside the Good Friday Agreement. As
such. the Prime Minister should make no commitments 1f Trimble raised it. He had
heard rumours that Trimble might propose David Montgomery as review chairman,
which could cause difficulties - Montgomery was perceived as a dved-in-the-wool
unionist. Mr Powell said that the Prime Minister would simply refer the issue back to

the Secretary of State.

Next few days

6. Mr Powell said Gerry Adams was looking for an urgent meeting with the
Prime Minister. This might happen on Monday. The Secretary of State planned to
meet Trimble as soon as he retumed to Belfest (Private Office will arrange). At the
moment he would stick to his leave plans but would take stock on, among other
things, the situation in North Belfast v ith the same cast tomorrow.

2LANE

KIRSTEN MCFARLANE
EXT 6461
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CONFIDENTIAL - PERSONAL

From: Jonathan Powell
Date: 4 September 2001

PRIME MINISTER cc: Michael Tatham
\/ Tom Kelly
David Manning

NORTHERN IRELAND

You are seeing David Trimble, David Campbell and Sylvia Hermon tomorrow.
The meeting is supposed to be private.

The UUP on Saturday rejected Patten and said they would demand further
concessions from you before agreeing to join the policing board. Trimble has
assured us this is purely tactical and that he will sign up for the policing board
before 23 September. You need to persuade him to sign up for it next week or we
are going to run out of time. If he does not do so he is playing into Sinn Fein
hands and leaving the SDLP isolated. He will plead party management problems.

Trimble asked us to put off publication of the Criminal Justice draft bill and
implementation plan until he saw you. We have done so, but we cannot put off
publication past Friday. Bertie was asking you about it on the phone because the
Irish are worried that we are going to renege on it. Trimble has a couple of
minor complaints about it (see briefing) but his major issue is Peter’s promise
that we would announce a target date for devolution of security policy. We can
do this, but it is a slightly odd thing to do given the parlous state of the peace
process.

The main things he will be interested in however is decommissioning and where
we go from here. On the former Gerry Adams has asked to come and see you as
soon as possible. We must assume he has a new proposal, although it is
questionable whether a token act of decommissioning will now be enough to
carry the Unionist community post-Colombia. On the latter, I do not think we
have much choice but suspension (probably after the UUP have withdrawn their
ministers) followed by a review. The question is who should head the review.
Trimble (and Unionists in general) will oppose Clinton. The NIO alternative Is
Rolf Meyer.

Trimble will also want to discuss the situation in North Belfast which is turning
very ugly indeed. {—i,
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11 Millbank, L.ondon, SW1F 4PN
Tel 020 7210 6469 Fax 020 7210 6479

email: william. fittall@nio.x.gsi.gov.uk

T

g

¢y
Jonathan Powell &S /TL(
10 Downing Street GJF

LONDON

SWIA 2AA
4 September 2001

PRIME MINISTER’S MEETING WITH DAVID TRIMBLE:
10.00 AM, WEDNESDAY 5 SEPTEMBER

You asked for some briefing for this meeting. In the Secretary of State’s absence [ have cleared the
following with Des Browne. We shall let you have a scparate note on the North Belfast impasse over
Holv Cross School.
Our objectives arc to

get Trimble’s candid assessment of the state of the UUP;

persuade him not to let Sinn Féin off the hook by making new public demands;

el a clear private understanding that we can invite nominations to the Policing Board next

8
&

week in the knowledge that the UUP w ill nominate;

defuse any Trimble objections 1o the publication of the draft criminal justice bill and
implementation plan this Friday:

discover how Trimble views the prospects of suspension/review/elections in the event of
failure to achieve decommissioning before 23 September.

State of play in UUP

What was the mood at Saturday’s meeting of the Executive and at the Party Officers’ meeting on
Friday? (Not for disclosure, our own contacts suggest Trimble took hits on Friday and was forced to
back a tougher motion on Saturday than he would have wanted.)

What game plan ar¢ Donaldson, Burnside and Martin Smyth working to?

What would it take for them to trigger a ineeting of the UUC?

CONFIDENTIAL
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Will party pressure be irresistible for supporting the DUP’s Assembly motion to exclude Sinn Féin
from the Exccutive?

Avoiding fresh demands

So far Trimble has confined himself publicly to asking pointed questions about Colombia. But
privately he has said that, post Colombia, he could no longer hope 10 secure re-election on the back of
a single act of decommissioning. How confident is he of resisting party pressure to add new public
demands — statements that the war is over, disbandment of the IRA etc - which would risk lelting Sinn
Féin off the hook? They are already saying that both unionist parties are now anti-Agreement parties.

He may press for the PM/Taociseach to ease his own problems by speaking out more publicly about
Colombia and the unacceptability of maintaining private armies. On Colombia, HMG has to remain
publicly circumspect given the continuing judicial investigation. On the broader question the PM can
stress his and the Taociseach’s frustration with the Provisionals, while cautioning that we need to find
out more about what Adams and McGuinaess are up 10 before concluding whether public pressure
would be effective.

Policing Board

The resolution passed unanimously by the UUP Executive on Saturday “restates its opposition to the
Patten report and reaflirms the leader’s determination 1o resolve satisfactorily with the Secretary of
State a number of fundamental issues regarding the Policing Board and the police implementation plan

before any further decision is given by the Ulster Unionist Party to nominate members to the Policing

Board”. Trimble’s public spin is that the party will nominate when the time is right. Donaldson’s 1S
that unionists should stand together and secure changes 0 the implementation plan before nominating.

The key points to make are:

bad news for effective policing if political nominations not secured before 23
September. That means John Reid will need to issue formal invitations to party
nominating officers next week;

not to capitalise on SDLP move would be serious error:

happy to clarify queries on resources or appointments process but no question of
changing the implementation plan as Sinn Féin and anti-Agreement unionists are
demanding;

no deals have been done with anyoene clse about appointments to the Board. John Reid
will consult Trimble/Empey (and Mallon) before decisions are made. If Sinn Féin do
aot nominate we will have to secure good nationalist representation among the
independents — but that does not mean republicans by the back door;

if UUP move, DUP are bound to follow (any read out from Monday’s meeting with
Paisley?)

CONFIDENTIAL
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According 1o John Hume, Trimble told him privately on Friday that the UUP would nominate before
23 September. But Trimble may now say to the PM that an early decision would split the party to no
good purpose since nominations would formally lapse if devolution is again suspended; the answer to
this 1s that once the parties have nominated, John Reid can invite those individuals to remain on a
direct rule Policing Board to maintain continuity.

Criminal Justice

We intended to publish the draft bill and implementation plan this Monday. This was delayed at
Trimble’s request. But if we have not published by this Friday Ministers will have reneged on public
promises (and — not for disclosure - more specific private statements to the Irish and Sinn Féin). We
should not delay publication unless it ts absolutely essential to enable Trimble to deliver an early UUP
move on policing. Officials had a long and largely constructive briefing session with Trimble and
Sylvia Hermon on Friday. For the record | attach the follow-up letter Des Browne has sent to David
McNarry.

The two issues Trimble may raise with the PM arc symbols and a date for devolving criminal justice
and policing. On symbols his complaint is that the draft Bill goes beyond the review which proposed
that the Royal Coat of Arms should remain on the exterior of existing courthouses but the interior of
courtrooms be free of any symbols. The complaint is that we are now explicitly saying that there will
be no coats of arms on the exterior of any new courthouses. This is the natural inference from what
the review said but Trimble argues that we arc now making things even more unacceptable. We have
no room for manoeuvre on the draft Bill. But Trimble has a particular concern over the new
LLaganside Courts complex in Belfast which is due to open in February before the new legislation

would come into force. If pressed the PM could agree that the Lord Chancellor and John Reid could
look again at the possibility of an external Coat of Arms there.

On timing of develution Trimble hinted on Friday that he might not nominate to the Policing Board
until we honoured the commitment given in a private letter from Peter Mandelson on 15 May 2000
that “'in relation to criminal justice functions, we would be ready 1o include a date in the
implementation plan for the review”. Our, rather vulnerable, line is that Peter Mandelson discharged
this last October by saving that “devolution will follow as soon as practicable” after the
implementation of policing reforms and of the decisions on the criminal justice review.

The negouating brief for Weston Park did envisage that, in the context of a big deal, we might say
publicly that “the Government’s target is to devolve policing and justice after the Assembly
elections scheduled for May 2003. Officials will undertake the necessary planning to make this
feasible if the circumsiances are judged to be right when the time comes”. But the Secretary of
State, the Lord Chancellor. the Attorney Generai, the Lord Chief Justice all have significant
reservations about the deliverability of ecarly devolution, and the Secretary of State for Defence, the
Chief Constable and the GOC are likely to have concerns while the army are required to give
substantial support to the police. Devolving criminal justice responsibility without policing is unlikely
to be an attractive option.

CONFIDENTIAL
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ggested line to take with Trimble 1s:
our private estimate is that the earliest practicable date for devolution would be after the
Assembly elections scheduled for May 2003 and, in reality, everything would turn on the
political and security situation at the time:

would a target date that far off and with all the necessary caveats really help Trimble within
the UUP now?

and won’t it look rather strange for Ministers to announce a target date of this kind just at the
point when devolution may be breaking down again? There will be further opportunities to
make statements over the coming months;

in any event, there is no logic in linking this issue to setting up the Policing Board, which is
an entirely scparate issue.

1t may be best to sound sceptical with Trimble without offering a firm and final view at this meeting.
We could make an carly aspirational statement i the Prime Minister concluded it was worth doing,

but Wednesday [eels a bit soon to concede what will be seen publicly as a very significant step.

Elections/suspension/review

Arcas to explore include:
UUP tactics on Sinn Féin exclusion motion;
— prospect of UUP Ministers withdrawing from the Executive before 23 September;
~ elections versus suspension + review;

— who might be brought in to help the two Governments conduct a review.

Trimble may also say that, in the absence of a breakthrough, he needs some other unionist friendly
moves, in particular helpful appointments to the Human Rights Commission and the launch of the
Parades Commission Review. On appointments Trimble can be reassured that the Secretary of State
will be looking at the outcome of a recent appointments exercise on his return from holiday. On the
Parades Commission the best course 1s to take note without immediate commitment — the further
disaggregation of the two Governments” package would be contentious and requires more thought.

WILLIAM FITTALL
Associate Political Director
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PRIME MINISTER’S MEETING WITH DAVID
HOLY CROSS SCHOOL

Monday and this morning saw extraordinary scenes

when loyalists in North Belfast prevented Catholic pyi
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